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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon.  I am Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano.

          4  I Chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings of

          5  the New York City Council.  I would like to thank

          6  all of you for attending today's hearing, so it is

          7  going to be an unusual hearing.  I know that several

          8  of you traveled great distances to be here, and I

          9  would like to welcome you to New York City and to

         10  the New York City Council.

         11                 Today the Committee has three matters

         12  on the agenda, two legislative bills, and one

         13  oversight topic.  They are as follows:

         14                 Proposed Intro. No. 126- A, a local

         15  law to amend the Administrative Code of the City of

         16  New York in relation to building safety.

         17                 Secondly, our oversight topic, an

         18  examination of external building evacuation systems.

         19    I keep saying excavation systems, I got it right

         20  this time.

         21                 And three, Intro. No. 257, a local

         22  law to amend the Administrative Code of the City of

         23  New York in relation to emergency lighting and exit

         24  signs.

         25                 Proposed Intro. No. 126- A, a local
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          2  law to amend the Administrative Code of the City of

          3  New York in relation to building safety reflects the

          4  latest amendments as proposed by the Administration.

          5    We had a prior hearing on this Intro. On February

          6  24th, 2004, and the Committee has requested that

          7  certain representatives come before it and clarify

          8  some of the issues.

          9                 As a reminder to some, and to provide

         10  some brief background for others, this Intro. Is the

         11  result of the World Trade Center Building Code Task

         12  Force that was convened on March 19th, 2002 by the

         13  New York City Department of Buildings.  It was set

         14  up to review current building design, construction,

         15  and operating requirements, and determines if

         16  modifications for extreme events were needed to

         17  ensure public safety in new and existing buildings.

         18                 In response to the September 11th,

         19  2001 terrorist attacks, and the subsequent collapse

         20  of the World Trade Center, the Department of

         21  Buildings established the Task Force to review the

         22  events and conditions that led to a failure of

         23  building operations.

         24                 In February of 2003, the Task Force

         25  formally announced 21 recommendations to the Mayor.
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          2  The Mayor accepted the recommendations of the Task

          3  Force, and then through the Department of Buildings

          4  identified 13 of the 21 recommendations for

          5  incorporation into what is now proposed Intro. No.

          6  126- A.  This is to enhance the safety of high- rise

          7  office buildings after the events of September 11th.

          8                 We have representatives from the

          9  Department of Buildings, including our Commissioner,

         10  Patricia Lancaster, who has returned to discuss this

         11  legislation, and we will also be hearing from

         12  representatives of the Port Authority of New York

         13  and New Jersey.

         14                 The second matter before the

         15  Committee is an oversight entitled, "An Examination

         16  of External Building Evacuation Systems."  This

         17  Committee will conduct a hearing to begin the

         18  process of reviewing recent developments and

         19  concepts in building evacuation technology.  This

         20  hearing will provide an opportunity for the

         21  discussion of various methods of new and/or cutting

         22  edge technologies that have been developed, or in

         23  the process of being designed for the systematic

         24  safe and orderly evacuation of buildings in the

         25  event of fire or other emergency.
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          2                 The terrorist attacks on the World

          3  Trade Center raised concerns about the adequacy of

          4  evacuation systems in high rise buildings.  This

          5  tragedy and the possibility of similar attacks have

          6  prompted governments and professionals to inquire

          7  and explore whether the incorporation of external

          8  evacuation systems can enhance public safety in a

          9  practical way.  Particularly, many traditional modes

         10  of evacuation are problematic for people in

         11  wheelchairs and with other mobility difficulties.

         12                 The Committee on Housing and

         13  Buildings anticipates hearing testimony from

         14  representatives of the Building Evacuation Industry,

         15  advocates of people with disabilities, and experts

         16  in fire safety, along with other members of the

         17  public interested in this topic.

         18                 With the advent of new technology the

         19  Committee expects and hopes that comments and

         20  suggestions will continue to be offered by

         21  individuals with expertise in this area in order to

         22  ensure the safety and economic viability of the

         23  City.

         24                 The final matter before the

         25  Committee, today, is Intro. No. 257, a local law to
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          2  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

          3  York in relation to emergency lighting and exit

          4  signs. Intro. No. 257 was introduced in response to

          5  the blackout that occurred on August 14th, 2003,

          6  which was the largest blackout in our nation's

          7  history, and left approximately 50 million people

          8  without power, including people residing in New York

          9  City.  During this time, many New Yorkers

         10  encountered great difficulty in leaving or entering

         11  their homes because of inadequate or non- existing

         12  emergency lighting and exit signs.

         13                 Today, the Committee is conducting

         14  its first hearing on Intro. No. 257, which would

         15  impose new requirements in residential buildings

         16  concerning the use of emergency power source or to

         17  storage battery equipment for exit lighting.  The

         18  Committee expects to hear from representatives of

         19  the Department of Buildings and the New York Housing

         20  Authority, and again, any interested members of the

         21  general public.

         22                 Anyone that wishes to testify, even

         23  if you have previously spoken to my staff, you must

         24  sign in with the Sergeant At- Arms.  And I do

         25  request that all organizations be represented by
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          2  only one spokesperson.

          3                 Our first item today is Proposed

          4  Intro. No. 126- A, and our first witness will be

          5  Patricia Lancaster, the Commissioner of the

          6  Department of Buildings.  Welcome.

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you.

          8  Good afternoon, Chairperson Provenzano and members

          9  of the Committee on Housing and Buildings.  My name

         10  is Patricia Lancaster, and I am, in fact, the

         11  Commissioner of the City's Department of Buildings.

         12  I am joined today by Stephen Kramer, my Chief of

         13  Staff, on my right.  Thank you for this opportunity

         14  to testify today in support of Intro. 126- A,

         15  considering the safety of high- rise office

         16  buildings.

         17                 As indicated at the prior hearing on

         18  the earlier version of this bill, this legislation

         19  constitutes an important advance in enhancing the

         20  safety of our buildings in light of the collapse of

         21  the World Trade Center structures.  While our task

         22  is not finished, if this bill passes, once

         23  additional studies are completed and we have more

         24  information, more changes will come. Intro. 126- A

         25  marks a clear advance in high- rise office building
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          2  safety without compromising the economic viability

          3  of existing or new construction.

          4                 Like Intro. 126, before it, Intro.

          5  126- A is based upon the recommendations, as

          6  Madeline said, of the World Trade Center Building

          7  Code Task Force convened in March of 2002 to address

          8  the concerns raised by the collapse of the Twin

          9  Towers and 7 World Trade Center.  The Task Force

         10  consisted of experts from government, the real

         11  estate community, and the design and construction

         12  professions.  It also received input from academia,

         13  special needs communities, and 9/11 victims,

         14  families, and their survivors.  After months of

         15  meeting, and a review of literature and standards of

         16  other nations, the Task Force proposed 21

         17  recommendations to enhance standards for public

         18  safety in high- rise office buildings during

         19  emergency events.  Thirteen of those recommendations

         20  form the basis of this bill's various technical

         21  provisions.

         22                 In the spirit of continuing the

         23  openness and transparency represented in the Task

         24  Force's processes, the Department carefully reviewed

         25  the comments on Intro. 126 received from the various
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          2  stakeholders in the bill, and the comments presented

          3  to this Committee, and by Committee members at the

          4  hearing on the prior version of this bill.  Some of

          5  these comments have led to minor changes in the

          6  bill, which I will outline in a few moments.  Other

          7  comments have led us to believe that further

          8  explanation of the relevant provision is warranted.

          9  Accordingly, I will first detail the difference

         10  between Intro. 126 and 126- A, then I will discuss

         11  three other controversial issues, and explain why

         12  they did not justify concomitant bill amendments.

         13                 The differences between Intro. 126

         14  and 126- A involve the requirements concerning four

         15  elements of building construction: Illuminated exit

         16  signs; elevator vestibules; air intake locations,

         17  and fuel oil transfer piping systems.  I will review

         18  each change separately.

         19                 The first set of changes affects

         20  Sections 3 and 17 of the bill, concerning

         21  illuminated egress signs.  In order to help ensure

         22  that a building's egress path is clear, even during

         23  power interruption, Intro. 126 mandated that certain

         24  illuminated exit signs that do not currently have

         25  backup power be connected to backup power by a
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          2  battery pack.  The prior version of the bill is not

          3  clear enough as to which signs, in which buildings

          4  fall under this retroactive requirement.  The new

          5  version eliminates this vagueness.

          6                 The next change can be found in

          7  Section 9 of the bill involve elevator vestibules.

          8  Intro. 126, the original bill, required smoke stop

          9  elevator vestibules in new high- rise office

         10  buildings of four or more stories.  In smoke

         11  conditions, elevator shafts have a potential of

         12  carrying smoke throughout a high- rise office

         13  building.  These smoke stop vestibule areas serve to

         14  prevent smoke in buildings from contaminating

         15  elevator shafts, and further prevent smoke in

         16  elevator shafts from spreading throughout the rest

         17  of the building.

         18                 The old version of the bill read as

         19  if the elevator vestibule requirements applied to

         20  any alteration of existing high rise office

         21  buildings.  Such an expansive reading was not the

         22  intent of the Task Force recommendations.  The Task

         23  Force felt that applying the requirement to all

         24  buildings was impractical from both an economic and

         25  a design prospective.  The amended bill makes clear
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          2  that existing buildings are not effected by the

          3  elevator vestibule requirement, except when two or

          4  more elevator shafts are being added.

          5                 The third change can be found in

          6  Section 20 of the current bill, and involves air

          7  intake locations.  To prevent the introduction of

          8  unwanted fumes, gases, or particles into the

          9  building ventilation system, either unintentionally

         10  or by design, Intro. 126 required new air intake

         11  serving mechanical ventilation systems to be 20 feet

         12  above ground level, 20 feet from ventilation

         13  exhausts, and 20 feet from loading base.  This

         14  requirement unnecessarily applied to air intake

         15  serving small ground for retail spaces not connected

         16  to the building- wide ventilation systems.  To

         17  address these concerns, Intro. 126- A limits this

         18  requirement to air intakes from mechanical systems

         19  serving spaces above a building second story, or

         20  serving a space of greater than 10,000 square feet

         21  of floor area.  This change makes the requirement

         22  more practical while still protecting the systems

         23  most at risk.

         24                 The remaining changes to the bill are

         25  in Section 22 and concern pure oil transfer piping.
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          2  The bill first clarified the applicability of the

          3  new requirement that piping from a transfer pump to

          4  equipment above the building's lowest floor, have a

          5  fire rated enclosure.  The amended version further

          6  clarifies the applicability of this requirement by

          7  explicitly stating that these enclosures are not

          8  required when the room containing the pump itself is

          9  fire rated.  Thus, the new bill eliminates a

         10  redundant and potentially expensive requirement.

         11                 The original bill also restricted the

         12  maximum new size of oil piping.  As a result of

         13  meetings with various professional groups the method

         14  for calculating the size of oil piping has been

         15  clarified to take into account that there are two

         16  types of oil transfer systems, which ought to have

         17  their pipes calculated differently.  In addition,

         18  the new version of the bill makes minor adjustments

         19  to various parts of Section 22 so that the entity of

         20  the Section accommodates new language described

         21  above.

         22                 Although some of the discussions that

         23  the Department has held concerning Intro. 126

         24  eventually led to the changes I have just described,

         25  thoughtful and thorough consideration of other
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          2  issues that have been raised since the bill's

          3  introduction have convinced us that certain key

          4  requirements of the bill are to remain as originally

          5  drafted.  These elements involve the bill's

          6  provisions concerning:

          7                 1.  Open web steel joists.

          8                 2.  Photoluminescence egress

          9  markings.

         10                 3.  Sprinklers.

         11                 Let's discuss open web steel joists

         12  first.  As written, Section 25 of the bill imposes a

         13  temporary prohibition on the use of open web steel

         14  joists in new commercial high- rise construction.

         15  Once further studies are completed, and we are

         16  closely following the work of the National Institute

         17  of Standards and Technology, or NIST, for guidance

         18  and information, per Section 18 of the bill, the

         19  Department will issue appropriate technical

         20  standards of addressing their usage in New York

         21  City.

         22                 These provisions rose out of concern

         23  raised by the Structural Strength Working Group of

         24  the World Trade Center Building Code Task Force.

         25  This working group consisted of representatives from
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          2  the Buildings and Fire Department, the City of

          3  Office of Emergency Management, and Department of

          4  Design and Construction, as well as engineers,

          5  architects, and representatives of real estate

          6  owners.  The major concern of the Structural

          7  Strength Group was the ability of fireproofing to

          8  work on open web steel joists, the type used in the

          9  World Trade Center Towers.  Due to their lightweight

         10  and efficient design, such materials all ready have

         11  a low resistance to fire.  Furthermore, since their

         12  decreased weight coincides with decreased mass, the

         13  surface area to which fireproofing is applied on

         14  these joists diminishes, further limiting their fire

         15  resistance.

         16                 The Working Group attempted to

         17  develop a standard, which would use a ratio of a

         18  joist's weight to surface area to produce a minimum

         19  allowable size factor.  However, since insufficient

         20  information was available about what would

         21  ultimately constitute a safe minimum size, normal

         22  final standard was able to be adopted.  Instead, the

         23  Group felt that NIST would be more capable of making

         24  such a determination.   Hence, the Working Group,

         25  and ultimately the Task force itself, recommended
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          2  the temporary bans on open web steel joists until

          3  NIST's standards are developed. Since these joists

          4  are not actually used in New York City skyscrapers,

          5  the temporary ban does not have any practical effect

          6  on construction here.  However, a consensus of

          7  stakeholders did agree that it was probably

          8  appropriate to temporarily ban these items until a

          9  code standard could be developed by a competent

         10  entity.  The Department stands by this provision of

         11  the bill.

         12                 Considerable discussion has also

         13  center on Sections 2 and 15 of the bills.  These

         14  sections require new and existing high- rise office

         15  buildings to installation markings that are

         16  photoluminescence, that is the technical term for

         17  things that glow in the dark, without needing an

         18  electrical recharge, on exit doors and in exit

         19  stairwells beginning January 1 of 2006.  The precise

         20  nature of the technical standards for the materials

         21  allowable in these markings and the extent of the

         22  markings themselves are to be developed through the

         23  Department's Public Reference Standard Adoption

         24  Process.  The standards will depend on information

         25  we glean from the literature, manufacturers, and
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          2  stakeholders, and will depend on the materials cost,

          3  effectiveness, and durability.

          4                 Photoluminescence materials will

          5  provide guides for building occupants to exit even

          6  when water, explosion, and other hazards have

          7  knocked out the emergency batteries and/or

          8  generators. The requirements will be minimum

          9  requirements and do not in any way prevent an owner

         10  from using additional types of luminescent sign

         11  markings.

         12                 Nevertheless, the Department has

         13  heard suggestions that the word "photoluminescence"

         14  be replaced with "luminescent." This would have the

         15  effect of allowing electric luminescent lighting,

         16  which is lighting powered by electricity and/or with

         17  battery backup to be used for egress markings

         18  instead of photoluminescence material, which does

         19  not require electricity.

         20                 Let me reiterate that nothing in the

         21  bill prohibits the proprietor from using electric

         22  luminescent lighting to mark a building's egress

         23  route.  It is our position, however, that since

         24  photoluminescence material is not depended on either

         25  electricity or batteries, it is the most reliable
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          2  form of illumination in an emergency situation.

          3  Remember that all of these buildings already have

          4  emergency lighting in the stairwells that are

          5  supposed to stay on when the regular power fails.

          6  The photoluminescence lighting is supposed to be a

          7  last resort for use when not only the regular power,

          8  but also the emergency power fails.  It is in

          9  circumstances like these that a tertiary system that

         10  does not need electricity will help evacuate a

         11  building safely.

         12                 Finally, at the last hearing many

         13  comments were made about the bill's sprinkler

         14  requirements.  Specifically, its requirements that

         15  buildings over 100 feet tall, as opposed to over 75

         16  feet tall be fully sprinkled, and the 15- year time

         17  frame for sprinkling these buildings.

         18                 Let's first discuss why only

         19  buildings over 100 feet will be required to be fully

         20  sprinkled.  This was an issue discussed by the Task

         21  Force's Fire Protection Working Group as their

         22  recommendations were being developed.  When

         23  retroactive sprinkling requirements for certain

         24  office buildings were previously added to the

         25  Building Code, such as in Section 27- 954- I, the
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          2  100- foot number was also used.  This was influenced

          3  by the fact that the Fire Department's aerial

          4  ladders reach approximately 65 to 95 feet, thereby,

          5  providing occupants in high- rise buildings under

          6  100 feet with an alternate means of escape.

          7                 With Intro. 126- A, the Building Code

          8  requirements for the retroactive sprinkling of tall

          9  office buildings remain internally consistent.

         10                 Regarding the 15- year time frame to

         11  complete the sprinkling that the bill gives owners,

         12  if cost and practicality were not constrained, a

         13  shorter implementation might be desirable. And of

         14  course, nothing in the bill precludes an owner from

         15  sprinkling a building in a shorter time.  However,

         16  sprinkling large buildings can be a massive

         17  undertaking.  It is not only expensive, but it can

         18  disrupt, and therefore, effect the economic

         19  viability of tenants as well.  While many leases are

         20  for shorter periods than 15 years, tenants typically

         21  renew five- and ten- year leases for at least one,

         22  five- year term without undergoing major renovations

         23  such as removing and installing ceilings that new

         24  sprinklers involve. The schedule in the bill allows

         25  proprietors to phase- in their sprinkler projects as
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          2  tenancies expire.  Thereby, cushioning the cost and

          3  minimizing the disruption to tenants.  It is a term

          4  that is both realistic and economically viable.

          5                 With the changes I have just outlined

          6  in place, Intro. 126- A will have a significant and

          7  positive impact on the safety of high- rise

          8  buildings and their occupants, and the emergency

          9  responders.  Of course, these changes do not

         10  represent the end of the process of reviewing

         11  improvement of the Building Code.  As additional

         12  studies are completed and we obtain more

         13  information, other changes may be made.  But these

         14  are important steps in achieving major advances in

         15  improving building design.

         16  As I have mentioned above, further follow- up with

         17  entities like NIST, as well as the Department's

         18  review of the International Building Code will be

         19  ongoing.  But these changes in Intro. 126- A are a

         20  positive step to keep New York safe and to enhance

         21  its competitiveness.  They do so in a manner that

         22  all of the relevant stakeholders agree is

         23  economically feasible and practical.  They deserve

         24  to become law.

         25                 Thank you for your time today.  I
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          2  would be happy to take some questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

          4  Commissioner. I would like to introduce the

          5  Committee members that are here.  To my right, we

          6  have Council Member James Oddo; Council Member Lew

          7  Fidler; Councilwoman Melinda Katz; Council Member

          8  Robert Jackson. To my left, we have Council Member

          9  Leroy Comrie; Council Member Tony Avella; and

         10  Councilwoman Diana Reyna.

         11                 Do we have any questions for the

         12  Commissioner?  I cannot see her, where are you,

         13  Letitia?  Okay, we have Councilwoman Letitia James.

         14                 Council Member Jackson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

         16  afternoon, Commissioner.  Concerning the luminescent

         17  markings in order to leave the building, you are

         18  recommending that the photo, in essence, the one

         19  that received its energy from the existing light in

         20  the building.  Is that correct?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  That is

         22  correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I mean, I

         24  believe at the last hearing someone came and gave an

         25  example of that.  Is that correct, Madam Chair?
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          2                 Now it is my understanding that the

          3  owners of the major buildings would like to use the

          4  electricity backup for that, because there are cost

          5  factors and longevity issues and all of that.  So is

          6  that okay in order for us to move in that direction,

          7  if the Committee wanted to?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well the

          9  Department is still studying some of the technical

         10  issues, such as the longevity, as you mentioned.  We

         11  have, to date, felt that it was important to avoid

         12  electricity as being necessary to mark the egress

         13  path, and therefore, had specified

         14  photoluminescence.  However, we have not ruled out

         15  almost anything, and we are happy to take another

         16  look at it, if that is what the Committee desires.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is your

         18  Department, has your Department done research on the

         19  positive aspects of both, and come up with any

         20  conclusions?  I mean, I know that there are some

         21  type of materials that can be charged from

         22  electricity, and then have a life span, you know,

         23  based on the charge that they receive from the

         24  electricity.  Isn't that correct?

         25                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  That is
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          2  absolutely correct. And one of the things that we

          3  heard when we were having our public forums for the

          4  World Trade Center Building Code Task Force, was

          5  that those markings in the Port Authority Buildings

          6  that they did after the 1993 bombing were an

          7  effective means of getting people out of the

          8  building.  And in that case, and in others, that is

          9  when not only regular power, but emergency power has

         10  failed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What is the

         12  time frame that is considered in order to evacuate

         13  people out of the building?  I mean, what do you

         14  look for as far as the time frame for the markings

         15  to be illuminated?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Frankly,

         17  that is still under advisement.  But I think that

         18  the exterior walls and the rating around the stair

         19  enclosures and elevator shafts are a two hour

         20  rating.  So something like that might be reasonable.

         21    I mean it is a good question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So what is

         23  your opinion at this point in time?  I am sorry,

         24  after you have read your statement, but what is your

         25  opinion at this point in time.  That area has not
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          2  really been concluded yet.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  That is

          4  correct.  There are open issues from a technical

          5  standpoint of human behavior in fire, and exactly

          6  what would be the safest location for the markings.

          7  And that is something we are still researching.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

          9  Madam Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         11  Member Comrie.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair, good afternoon, Commissioner.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Hi.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Just a

         16  follow- up question on the photoluminescence, so you

         17  are saying that the Buildings Department is still

         18  studying the issue as far as inclusion or the

         19  ability for manufacturers or landlords to install

         20  this, if they so choose?  Do you envision seeing a

         21  combined system, or a fail- safe system?

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  I am not

         23  quite sure what you mean by that?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Well, I am

         25  not sure, you are saying on one hand that you have
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          2  not finished studying the possibilities of pursuing

          3  the photoluminescence or luminescent, or the

          4  electric luminescent, and I hope I am doing the

          5  terms correctly.  And that you are still looking at

          6  all the alternative proposals, or the proposals to

          7  do it?

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  More than

          9  half of the entertainment information that comes

         10  forward, and frankly, that is what is happening

         11  here, especially with regard to how long it needs to

         12  last, and where it goes, and then also the materials

         13  are things that we are trying to keep an open mind

         14  about.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, so you

         16  are saying that it has to do with the advent of new

         17  technology, it may be a possibility, if there is new

         18  technology involved.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  There are

         20  new products coming on the market as we speak.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.

         22                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  It is sort

         23  of like the egress thing that you are going to hear

         24  next.  You know there are new products being

         25  developed daily, practically.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.  And

          3  just on the sprinklers, quickly, I want to thank you

          4  for clearing that up a little bit, and just to

          5  protect safety regarding the issue of installing it.

          6    And the time, will it be installation of the

          7  sprinklers over a 15- year period, will they be

          8  activated floor by floor, or section by section

          9  during that time, or will a building have to wait

         10  for a full installation for it to be operable?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Good

         12  question.  The way that we envision it, it would

         13  not, could not be done all at the same time, because

         14  in high- rise office buildings the tenancies are not

         15  usually moved at the same time.  So, in fact, we are

         16  trying to allow for the possibility that tenants

         17  will move at different times.  So, for instance, if

         18  tenant A has three floors, then when that tenant,

         19  you know, will use their lease for five years and

         20  then they move out, those three floors would be

         21  done.  And then when tenant B in the next two floors

         22  above that, or whatever, move out, then those two

         23  floors would be done.  Such that in a 15- year cycle

         24  all floors would be done.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Would those
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          2  three floors be active, was what I am saying, would

          3  those three floors have the sprinkler systems that

          4  would work, or will the building have to wait the

          5  full 15 years before you turn on the system?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  I see what

          7  you are saying. So from a technical standpoint the

          8  way that you would accomplish this is you would put

          9  the standpipe, the major vertical riser in first, in

         10  probably the stairwell, and then you would do what

         11  is called branch sprinkling piping off from that on

         12  a floor by floor basis.  Such that if the standpipe,

         13  once the standpipe goes in the full length of the

         14  buildings, any floor can be, in effect, plugged into

         15  the branch sprinkler piping.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  All right,

         17  and that technology exists at this present moment.

         18                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  And

         20  you did not mention specifically on whether or not

         21  there was any negative feedback to the that, but I

         22  guess we will hear that a little bit later.  But I

         23  just wanted to say, I appreciate the desire and the

         24  time frame, and your consideration of the 15- year

         25  period.  And now I feel more comfortable that, you
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          2  know, temporary measures will be in effect to

          3  protect those people, at least, partially the

          4  building can be taken care of during that time.

          5  Hopefully, we would not have a large fire to be

          6  concerned about.  But if you are doing it in stages,

          7  then at least some of the building can be under

          8  protection having the sprinklers within the building

          9  during that time, so.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well I think

         11  that is right. The other thing that is happening is,

         12  that we hear, is that owners are voluntarily

         13  sprinkling and also using the photoluminescence. A

         14  lot of owners have now, now that we have come up

         15  with our recommendation before it is signed into

         16  law, they have chosen to install photoluminescence

         17  materials in their stairways and exit corridors.  So

         18  I am optimistic that what you are talking about will

         19  happen on a mandated basis, but also voluntarily.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Will these be

         21  self certification types of installations, or will

         22  the Buildings Department come out and monitor?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well we

         24  monitor self certified jobs, and non- self-

         25  certified jobs, so.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  All right,

          3  thank you.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

          5  any more questions?  Thank you, Commissioner.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Next person

          8  to testify is Frank Lombardi, Chief Engineer of the

          9  Port Authority.  Just make sure that you identify

         10  yourself.

         11                 MR. LOMBARDI:  Thank you.  Chairwoman

         12  Provenzano and the members of the Committee, thank

         13  you for the opportunity to appear before you on

         14  Intro. 126.  My name is Francis J. Lombardi, and I

         15  am the Chief Engineer of the Port Authority.

         16                 I am here to express support for the

         17  legislation of the Department of Buildings, World

         18  Trade Center Building Code Task Force

         19  recommendations to make buildings safer.  I would

         20  also like to commend the efforts by the Department

         21  of Buildings, and to express my appreciation to your

         22  Chairwoman for your leadership on this critical

         23  issue.

         24                 As a bi- state agency, the Port

         25  Authority is not subject to the Municipal Code
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          2  requirements.  The Port Authority is a responsive

          3  and responsible agency, government agency, with a

          4  longstanding policy to meet or exceed Municipal

          5  Building and Fire Codes at all of its facilities.

          6  The Port Authority has put this policy in writing

          7  and has signed Memorandums of Understanding with New

          8  York City's Department of Buildings, as well as the

          9  Fire Department.

         10                 The MOU stipulates the procedures to

         11  be followed for any construction project in the City

         12  by the Port Authority or any of its tenants.  This

         13  approach has been endorsed by the New York City

         14  Department of Buildings, World Trade Center Building

         15  Task Force, which wrote in a February 2003 report,

         16   "while not necessarily required to comply with New

         17  York City Building Code, buildings within New York

         18  City's geographical boundaries, such as diplomatic

         19  missions, federal government buildings and those of

         20  other quasi- governmental authorities, should ensure

         21  that their facilities meet New York City Code

         22  requirements.  This can be accomplished through a

         23  Memorandum of Understanding and other types of

         24  intergovernmental collaboration."

         25                 Signed in 1993, the Port Authority's
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          2  Memorandum of Understanding with New York City

          3  continued to be in effect and applied to all new

          4  construction at the World Trade Center site and all

          5  other projects in the City.  In addition, the Port

          6  Authority's net lease with Silverstein Properties

          7  for the World Trade Center explicitly requires that

          8  they meet Municipal Codes.  The requirements of the

          9  net lease continue to be in effect as well.

         10                 As the Chief Engineer of the Port

         11  Authority, I personally know that all requirements

         12  in the MOU are not only fully complied with, but in

         13  many instances exceeded.

         14                 Both Silverstein Properties and the

         15  Port Authority are demonstrating their continuing

         16  commitment to safety and security in the rebuilding

         17  of 7 World Trade Center, across the street from the

         18  16- acre World Trade Center site.  In collaboration

         19  with the New York City Department of Buildings and

         20  the New York City Fire Department, this building

         21  will include enhancements that exceed Building and

         22  Fire Code requirements, as well as state- of the-

         23  art safety and security technologies.  The standards

         24  applied to 7 World Trade Center will be applied to

         25  all new construction at the World Trade Center site
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          2  and are expected to serve as a model for safe and

          3  secure building construction across the nation.

          4                 The Port Authority has agreed to work

          5  toward the establishment of a peer review process,

          6  during which experts would independently review

          7  building plans for the World Trade Center site.

          8  Also, New York City is being encouraged to conduct

          9  unannounced building and fire inspections at 7 World

         10  Trade Center and throughout the 16- acre World Trade

         11  Center site during construction and at the

         12  operations of the buildings.

         13                 Despite the overwhelming grief felt

         14  by the survivors, they literally dusted themselves

         15  off that day and went right back to work.

         16                 Through their remarkable efforts in

         17  the days and weeks that followed, they provided calm

         18  in a time of chaos, and security in a time of

         19  uncertainty, helping with the rescue and recovery

         20  efforts, and keeping vital, public transportation

         21  facilities open.

         22                 The Twin Towers were attacked in an

         23  unprecedented and previously unimagined, extreme

         24  way.  No public or commercial building complex has

         25  ever been designed to withstand the impact of a
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          2  fuel- laden commercial airliners.  No office

          3  building has ever been designed with such an assault

          4  in mind.

          5                 The Port Authority is fully committed

          6  to implement the Task Force's recommendations once

          7  enacted by the City Council in all buildings at the

          8  World Trade Center site and all other Port Authority

          9  facilities.

         10                 Also, please be aware that we have

         11  worked closely with Councilman Alan Gerson, Chair of

         12  the Council's Select Committee on Lower Manhattan,

         13  on a series of efforts designed to make the new

         14  buildings at the World Trade Center site the safest

         15  in the world.

         16                 Thank you for your interest, and I

         17  would be happy to answer any questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19  We certainly appreciate those remarks, and

         20  appreciate the fact that you are perfectly willing

         21  to comply.

         22                 We have been joined by Council Member

         23  Joel Rivera, I think he is in back of me.

         24                 Council Member Fidler, you have a

         25  question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

          3  Madam Chairwoman. Mr. Lombardi, it almost seems to

          4  me as if the first page and a half of your testimony

          5  is a gyration.  I would just like to know, why? If

          6  the Port Authority is agreeable to exceed the

          7  standards of the New York City's Buildings Code, and

          8  notwithstanding recommendations from a Task Force in

          9  2003, and why you have gotten to this point, why, in

         10  God's name are you doing everything you possibly can

         11  at the Port Authority to make it so that we cannot

         12  pass legislation that would put the Port Authority

         13  under the jurisdiction of the Buildings Code, why

         14  aren't you willing to comply with that?

         15                 MR. LOMBARDI:  I am only talking here

         16  as a Chief Engineer and as a Professional Engineer,

         17  not as an attorney.  And I am committed to following

         18  all the requirements that were signed by the two

         19  entities, the Buildings Department and the Fire

         20  Department, as far as any construction requirements

         21  as signed off at the Memorandum of Understanding.

         22  In effect, I am basically using those MOUs as law.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So, I mean,

         24  but what you are saying is that you are not the

         25  policy maker.  But we had a great deal of discussion
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          2  and dialogue at the last hearing on this subject

          3  about the Port Authority's refusal to accept

          4  legislation, and to endorse legislation that would

          5  subject Port Authority's properties within the City

          6  of New York to the New York City's Buildings Code.

          7                 I mean, you know, this testimony to

          8  me, you know, could be summed up as, me thinks thou

          9  protests too much.  And I am just curious as an

         10  engineer, since you are telling me that you are

         11  going to exceed the code anyway, do you have any

         12  problem, as an engineer, subjecting Port Authority's

         13  properties within the City of New York to the New

         14  York City's Buildings Code?

         15                 MR. LOMBARDI:  As a professional

         16  engineer, I am here to let you know that I do not

         17  have any problems because I am already doing it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So can you

         19  imagine, could you maybe speculate, why the policy

         20  makers of the Port Authority disagree with you?

         21                 MR. LOMBARDI:  I cannot speculate,

         22  Sir.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  All right.  I

         24  think that answers a lot of questions for me.  Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

          3  any other questions for the PA?  Council Member

          4  Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I think I

          6  have a question and a comment.  And I just want to

          7  follow- up, Sir, and I appreciate your coming in,

          8  and I appreciate you communicating with what the

          9  MOUs state.  But it seems a little ironic to me as a

         10  layperson, and I am not an engineer by any matter,

         11  shape, or form, but clearly if the Port Authority

         12  has agreed to follow all of the Buildings Codes as

         13  far as the World Trade Center location and site, I

         14  do not see, considering the safety issue, why you

         15  would not agree to follow that stringent requirement

         16  for all other properties in New York City.  I mean

         17  the safety and security of all of the people in New

         18  York City, and all of the firefighters and police

         19  and other emergency people are of utmost concern to

         20  us and are very, very sensitive in New York City

         21  specifically concerning 9/11, and I just do not

         22  understand the logic and reasoning why the Port

         23  Authority will not agree to that.

         24                 MR. LOMBARDI:  Well you are asking

         25  basically about the same policy.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.

          3                 MR. LOMBARDI:  As far as the World

          4  Trade Center Department of Buildings Task Force,

          5  they are acknowledging that there are entities out

          6  there, such as the federal government and other

          7  state governments that do not necessarily have to

          8  legally comply with local Municipal Code.  And they

          9  also recommended as one of their 21 recommendations

         10  that a way of getting around that is to, in fact,

         11  enact an MOU with the City, both the Department of

         12  Buildings and the Fire Department, which we have

         13  done.  And that is a way of dealing with, as far as

         14  I am concerned as a professional engineer, dealing

         15  with the issue of having our designs within New York

         16  City, limit, adhere to the New York City Buildings

         17  Code requirements and safety issues as well.

         18                 And I am there to fulfill that

         19  obligation.  I am there to fulfill that MOU with

         20  both Departments.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right, I

         22  understand the MOU.  But I am talking about a

         23  broader issue.  I am talking about the broader issue

         24  of the safety and security of all of the people on

         25  Port Authority property in New York City, and
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          2  especially all of the firefighters and the emergency

          3  people that will respond.

          4                 Let me ask you a question.  As an

          5  engineer would it not be in the best interest of

          6  Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, and the

          7  citizens and personnel of New York City, if in fact

          8  the codes were standardized as far as the highest

          9  level of safety so that in responding to emergency

         10  situations that they know that the environment that

         11  they are going to go into has met all of the

         12  requirements of New York City law, wouldn't you

         13  agree that that is the best way to handle business,

         14  as an engineer?

         15                 MR. LOMBARDI:  I am already saying

         16  that, Sir.  I am saying that, as a professional

         17  engineer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Have you

         19  made that recommendation to your Board?  As a

         20  professional, licensed engineer, the Chief Engineer

         21  of the Port Authority of New York, have you made

         22  that recommendation to your boss?

         23                 MR. LOMBARDI:  It is not for me to

         24  make a recommendation to the Board.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No, I
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          2  disagree with you, Sir.  You are the Chief Engineer.

          3                 MR. LOMBARDI:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And if you

          5  are the Chief Engineer, part of your responsibility

          6  is to make recommendations to your principal as to

          7  safety and security.  Do you agree with that?

          8                 MR. LOMBARDI:  Part of my

          9  recommendation is basically, to basically tell them

         10  that I am in compliance with the laws.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I did not

         12  ask you that question, Sir.  My question to you was,

         13  would you agree, it is your job as a Chief Engineer

         14  to recommend what the most appropriate safe and

         15  secure situation is as far as engineering of

         16  buildings within the Port Authority jurisdiction?

         17                 MR. LOMBARDI:  I am doing that by

         18  following the MOU, Sir, I am doing that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I am not

         20  referring to the MOU, Sir.  I am talking, the MOU

         21  deals with the World Trade Center location.  Is that

         22  correct?

         23                 MR. LOMBARDI:  No, it deals with all

         24  the facilities within the City of New York.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  All right.
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          2                 MR. LOMBARDI:  It deals with all the

          3  facilities that are operated and that have tenants

          4  at New York City, at the facilities of New York

          5  City.  Every one of them, even if a tenant comes

          6  into JFK and wants to build something, they have to

          7  be in compliance with the City's codes.  That is

          8  part of my obligation to make sure, and they have to

          9  follow a procedure that does that.  In effect, we

         10  act as a Building Department for the Port Authority

         11  of New York and New Jersey in that regard.  So when

         12  they come in and they want to propose a construction

         13  they have to hire an architect and engineer,

         14  licensed in the City, and they have to meet those

         15  guidelines.  We have a criteria, we give them our

         16  Tenant Alterations Application Code Manual that they

         17  have to follow.  And we rigorously inspect and go

         18  through that particular design, as well as the

         19  construction to ensure that they are following the

         20  codes.

         21                 And when they do not do that, Sir, we

         22  write to them. And many times, we point out where in

         23  the Sections of the Code of the City that they are

         24  not following.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, Mr.
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          2  Lombardi, I hear you, you sound like a bureaucrat,

          3  to my opinion, let me just say that to you.

          4                 MR. LOMBARDI:  I am sorry if I sound

          5  like a bureaucrat, Sir, but I am acting and behaving

          6  as a professional engineer as anyone else that is

          7  really responsible and takes his responsibility

          8  seriously.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, thank

         10  you.

         11                 MR. LOMBARDI:  Especially as defined

         12  by the MOUs.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         16  Member Fidler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Just to

         18  follow- up, Mr. Lombardi, I am not questioning your

         19  integrity or your competence in any shape, way,

         20  matter, or form, I want to make that clear.  May the

         21  Buildings Department come in and enforce your MOU?

         22                 MR. LOMBARDI:  I have basically asked

         23  the Building Department to encourage them to visit

         24  our construction - -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  That is, in
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          2  all due respect, you have to answer the question

          3  that was asked, may the Buildings Department

          4  enforce, legally enforce the MOU, or can they only

          5  encourage and visit?

          6                 MR. LOMBARDI:  That is a legal

          7  question, Sir.  I am not an attorney.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  But you know

          9  the answer.  I mean, the answer is, the point of the

         10  question is that Building Department inspectors

         11  cannot come in and enforce the MOU.

         12                 MR. LOMBARDI:  No, Sir, they can,

         13  they can come in.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  They cannot.

         15                 MR. LOMBARDI:  They are encouraged to

         16  come in unannounced, Sir.  They can come in any

         17  time.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And issue

         19  violations.

         20                 MR. LOMBARDI:  They can issue any

         21  violation and we will deal with them, we will talk

         22  to them, and we will resolve those violations, Sir.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So you are

         24  telling us that there is no difference at Port

         25  Authority site between a privately owned site, the
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          2  Buildings Department may do everything at a Port

          3  Authority site that they may do elsewhere?

          4                 MR. LOMBARDI:  That is how I am

          5  interpreting the MOU, Sir.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I do not

          7  think that is how it has been explained to us.

          8                 MR. LOMBARDI:  They can come in

          9  anytime, they can look at our project record, they

         10  can look at all of the design reviews that we had on

         11  any of our tenant facilities, any of our Port

         12  Authority construction jobs, they can look at them.

         13  They could have other people, if they want to, to

         14  examine them to see whether or not they are in

         15  compliance with New York City Code. They could ask

         16  for our project file folder on any of our tenant

         17  work.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Then I do

         19  not, frankly, understand, again, since you are

         20  saying, you know, in every way except for

         21  jurisdiction, the MOU is as good as the law, why you

         22  would not, why the Port Authority, not you, because

         23  you are not the policy maker, why the Port Authority

         24  would not say, all right, we want to be subjected to

         25  the same laws as everybody else.  I just do not
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          2  understand it.

          3                 MR. LOMBARDI:  I am interpreting, for

          4  your information, I am interpreting the MOU as law,

          5  as far as I am concerned and how I deal with matters

          6  of Code issues and safety as far as New York City

          7  facilities are concerned.  And I encourage them to

          8  come and investigate, I encourage them to look at

          9  any of our project folders.  We, whenever we have an

         10  issue with a particular tenant, we sometimes call

         11  the Building Department and ask them.  We have a

         12  good working relationship with them, and we ask

         13  them, are we interpreting this the same way that you

         14  would interpret the code, and many times we get

         15  support from them, and encouraged.  And they say,

         16  yes, you are interpreting it the same way.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Mr. Lombardi,

         18  I do not want to beat this to death, and earn the

         19  enemy of my colleagues.  You know, something is

         20  being requested and it is being turned down, and you

         21  say we are doing it anyway, there is something going

         22  on underneath the rock that I am not seeing.  And if

         23  you are sitting here and telling me that it is the

         24  same anyway, the MOU is just as good as subjecting

         25  the Port Authority to the jurisdiction to the
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          2  Buildings Department of the City of New York, it is

          3  not some great principle of government that you

          4  should not be, I do not see the moral issue.  I am

          5  just growing curiouser (sic) and curiouser (sic) as

          6  to what it is I am not seeing at the Port Authority

          7  that is making the Port Authority so resistant to

          8  being under the jurisdiction of the Buildings

          9  Department.

         10                 You know, maybe I am just blind to

         11  it.  But if you are telling me it is all the same

         12  anyway, I do not get it.

         13                 MR. LOMBARDI:  I am telling you it is

         14  the same, as far as I am concerned from a

         15  professional engineer's point of view.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Madam

         17  Chairperson, I would ask if we can get some kind of

         18  official correspondence from the policy makers at

         19  the Port Authority.  Perhaps they can explain why in

         20  light of the testimony of their Chief Engineer that

         21  as far as he is concerned there is no difference

         22  between being subject to the MOU and to State

         23  Legislation that would subject the Port Authority to

         24  the New York City Buildings Code, and the

         25  jurisdiction of the New York City's Buildings
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          2  Department.  Why the Port Authority is resistant to

          3  it.  I would love to hear the answer.

          4                 MR. LOMBARDI:  Those issues, I am

          5  sure, Councilman, would apply also to other entities

          6  that do not fall, from a legal point of view, like

          7  the federal government.  I even had issues with the

          8  federal government when they were doing work on Port

          9  Authority facilities.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I have issues

         11  with the federal government too.

         12                 MR. LOMBARDI:  No, but I am just

         13  letting you know that there are other entities, and

         14  what you are asking is of one entity and that is the

         15  Port Authority.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  An entity

         17  that is created by the State of New York and the

         18  State of New Jersey, and which has massive real

         19  estate holdings in the City of New York.

         20                 MR. LOMBARDI:  Correct, and I am here

         21  to let you know that as a professional engineer, I

         22  am following the dictates of the MOU as if they were

         23  law, Sir, that is what I am here for.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Councilman

         25  Fidler, we will discuss that more.  Not being an
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          2  attorney, I am not totally sure what the issue, I

          3  would imagine that MOU is a legal, binding contract,

          4  but we will discuss it.

          5                 Do we have any other questions?  Mr.

          6  Lombardi, thank you very much for coming.

          7                 MR. LOMBARDI:  Thank you very much,

          8  and thank you for your attention.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have

         10  Timothy Day and Dr. James Fisher from the Steel

         11  Joist Institute.  Dr. Fisher, I think you are the

         12  spokesperson.

         13                 DR. FISHER:  Thank you, Ma'am.

         14  Another engineer in the hot seat here.  We do want

         15  to thank you for allowing us to take this time to

         16  discuss the issue of 126- A, relative to the ban of

         17  the open web steel joist.  My name is Dr. James

         18  Fisher.  I am the consulting engineer to the Steel

         19  Joist Institute, as well as a practicing engineer,

         20  and also Chairman of American Institute of Steel

         21  Construction Specification Committee, which writes

         22  the safety requirements for steel in the United

         23  States.

         24                 I would like to say a few words about

         25  the Steel Joist Institute as recorded in the SJI's
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          2  earlier testimony on February 24th.  The SJI is the

          3  governing body for manufacturer of steel joist,

          4  which are defined in the construction industry as

          5  open web joists.  These materials support directly

          6  roof and floor deck and loads.  The SJI is a not-

          7  for- profit organization comprised of 18 members,

          8  companies, which operate 39 manufacturing facilities

          9  throughout the United States, Canada, and Mexico.

         10  The members of SJI produce 98 percent of steel joist

         11  used in this country.  The SJI is also a member of

         12  the American National Standards Institute, ANSI, and

         13  as such are responsible for the development of the

         14  ANSI standards as they relate to steel joists and

         15  joist girders.

         16                 In reviewing the latest proposal for

         17  Intro. 126- A, the SJI finds no changes relative to

         18  Sections 18 and 25 as previously stated.  The

         19  position of SJI has not been altered from that

         20  previously stated in February of this year.  In

         21  spite of our request, the Department of Buildings

         22  has failed to supply any evidence to support its

         23  recommendation for the controlled use of open web

         24  steel joists.  The Department of Buildings, as

         25  stated in their letter of April 2, which is attached
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          2  to the handout we provided, continues to follow,

          3   "studies being conducted by the National Institute

          4  of Standards and Technology, NIST, and will rely on

          5  the result, reports, and analysis by NIST when it

          6  recommends RS 10- 7."  Neither NIST nor Department

          7  of Buildings have supplied any evidence in reports

          8  or analysis in support of its proposal.  For the

          9  Department of Buildings to continually press for

         10  imposing a ban prior to any documentation to support

         11  such action, in my opinion, is unscientific and just

         12  not right.

         13                 The Department of Buildings is

         14  placing the cart before the horse.  The open web

         15  trusses utilized in the World Trade Center were not

         16  in accordance with the then existing SJI

         17  specifications and load tables, and they remain not

         18  in accordance with current specifications.  These

         19  members were not open web steel joists, but rather

         20  special trusses.

         21                 Regarding the investigative reports,

         22  the Institute still has been not given the

         23  opportunity to examine any evidence leading to

         24  current recommendations.  The Institute continues to

         25  be denied the opportunity to participate in the
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          2  process, all of which would seem to be a violation

          3  of fundamental due process, when this Council is

          4  considering a ban on the use of steel joists

          5  industry products.  This treatment of the steel

          6  joist industry in this entire investigation

          7  continues to signal the industry being a victim

          8  without any necessary facts to support such a

          9  proposal.

         10                 It should be noted that in the

         11  original recommendations proposed by the World Trade

         12  Center Building Code Task Force in February of 2003,

         13  any ban on steel joists was to be considered on a

         14   "temporary" basis pending further investigation.

         15  However, as is witnessed in the review of the

         16  current recommendations by DOB, the word "temporary"

         17  has been omitted without factual support.

         18                 We strongly contend that enactment of

         19  such a proposal, recommendation banning the use of

         20  steel joists prior to definite findings, in support

         21  of such a recommendation, is arbitrary and

         22  capricious restrain of trade.  The Institute asks

         23  that any such action be deferred until such time as

         24  definite results, if any, become available from

         25  NIST.
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          2                 Thank you for your time, I would be

          3  happy to answer any questions that I can.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          5  Councilman Fidler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Sorry, if

          7  this appears to be pick on an engineer day.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  It must be

          9  pick on engineer's day.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I should

         11  start off by saying I am pleased that you shifted

         12  the villain from the Fire Department that our

         13  firefighters to the Department of Buildings, since

         14  Mr. Hackworth's testimony.  I am going to read from

         15  Commissioner Lancaster's testimony today, and ask

         16  you to respond.

         17                 And this is, her testimony is derived

         18  from the Structural Strength Working Group of the

         19  WTC Task Force.  "A major concern of the Structural

         20  Strength Group was the ability of fireproofing to

         21  work on open web steel joists, the type used in the

         22  World Trade Center Towers.  Due to their

         23  lightweight, such materials already have lower

         24  resistance to fire.  Furthermore, since their

         25  decreased weight coincides with decreased mass, the
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          2  surface area to which fireproofing is applied on

          3  these joists diminishes, further limiting their fire

          4  resistance."

          5                 Is that a total fabrication?

          6                 DR. FISHER:  No, Sir, it is not.

          7  There is a difference in structural members

          8  depending on mass and size of materials.  In order

          9  to qualify for a given fire rating each type of

         10  assembly, be it joists or be it steel beams or any

         11  other product is subjected to fire tests by UL.

         12                 In the case of steel joists,

         13  different fireproofing amounts must be applied than

         14  some other material.  Every system has to achieve a

         15  certain hourly rating to meet the Building Code,

         16  whether it is one- hour, two- hour, three- hour.

         17  And in the case of the research that SJI has done,

         18  certain things have to be done in order to achieve

         19  that rating.  And that is one of our points, the

         20  steel trusses that were in the World Trade Center

         21  were not the same as what we produce with the steel

         22  joist.  I do not know the fire rating for those

         23  trusses.

         24                 But technically, yes, you are correct

         25  that there is a difference.  It does not make it
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          2  bad, however.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well I do not

          4  know, it would seem to me that what I just read to

          5  you would sound pretty bad.  I mean I am not an

          6  engineer, and you lost me with some of that stuff.

          7                 But what is it, factually, about what

          8  the Commissioner testified to today that is bad,

          9  sounds bad, that you are saying is inaccurate, I am

         10  losing it?

         11                 DR. FISHER:  If you took systems

         12  side- by- side, one being a steel beam, and one

         13  being an open web steel joist and applied the same

         14  amount of fireproofing to them, they would behave

         15  differently.  And that is why when products are

         16  subjected to the fire tests by UL, different amounts

         17  of fireproofing have to be applied.

         18                 On the lighter members, more

         19  fireproofing may have to be applied to achieve the

         20  same hourly rating.  The Codes require a certain

         21  hourly rating.  Steel joists have been subjected to

         22  those tests, they satisfied the requirements of the

         23  Building Code and I think the concern here with the

         24  World Trade Center was, does the fireproofing come

         25  off under the impact of an airplane.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, I think

          3  the testimony also said, and if I heard you

          4  correctly, you are saying that more fireproofing is

          5  required on the open web steel joist.  And the

          6  testimony is that because of their decreased mass,

          7  there is decreased surface area on which to apply

          8  it.  So that would seem to be a big red flag to me,

          9  it needs more, but you cannot apply more, you can

         10  apply less.  Doesn't that strike you, you know, as a

         11  problem?

         12                 DR. FISHER:  The sound of that does

         13  strike me as a problem.  But they cannot pass, steel

         14  joists cannot pass the UL requirements unless a

         15  proper amount is applied.  So even maybe a smaller

         16  member, additional fireproofing has to be built up

         17  and to achieve the hour rating.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So why, Sir,

         19  would you think that the Department of Buildings is

         20  so insistent upon this?

         21                 DR. FISHER:  I really do not know,

         22  and what also bothers me is the fact that there is a

         23  ban on open web steel joists.

         24                 Now sprayed on fireproofing is only

         25  one way to fireproof a structural member.  There are
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          2  other ways, fire- rated ceilings, gypsum (phonetic)

          3  board.  We are banning a product based on sprayed on

          4  fireproofing, when there are other methods of

          5  achieving the hourly rating as well that have

          6  nothing to do with sprayed on fireproofing.  I think

          7  the problem is the question on the sprayed on

          8  fireproofing, not the steel joist.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And would you

         10  know why the New York City Fire Department is so

         11  adamantly against the open web steel joist?

         12                 DR. FISHER:  No, I do not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So, you know,

         14  we sit here, I mean, quite honestly I doubt anyone

         15  of us has the personal expertise to make a judgement

         16  about open web steel joists, which frankly, was a

         17  term I never heard before the last hearing.  And you

         18  know our firefighters and the Department of

         19  Buildings are telling us this is a safety provision

         20  that ought to be enacted, because these are more

         21  dangerous.

         22                 I mean, how could you expect me, as a

         23  responsible elected official, not to accept that?

         24                 DR. FISHER:  I cannot tell you what

         25  to accept and what not to accept.  I have to go with
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          2  research data and information that is provided to us

          3  engineers when we specify a product.  And we will

          4  not specify a product unless it is guaranteed by

          5  research data and testing to be a correct product.

          6  So to me it may be an emotional issue, but it is not

          7  a scientific issue.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well could

          9  you, at least, acknowledge that apparently sprayed

         10  on fireproofing on open web steel joists is

         11  inadequate?

         12                 DR. FISHER:  I do not know.  It may

         13  be inadequate for not only steel joists, but for

         14  other members that have been subjected to a massive

         15  impact load, that knocks it off.  And until the

         16  research is done, that is why I think it is wrong -

         17   -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I do not

         19  think that anyone, in all due respect, Sir, I do not

         20  think that anyone is trying to lay the collapse of

         21  the World Trade Center, you know, squarely on open

         22  web steel joists.  I mean, you know, I have a

         23  different perspective as to who I would blame, and

         24  it is certainly none of the people that built the

         25  Trade Center.
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          2                 It just, you know, I am in a little

          3  quandary here because I would certainly want to air

          4  on the side of caution.  And I cannot think of any

          5  reason in the world why the Fire Department or the

          6  Department of Buildings would pick on open web steel

          7  joists without good reason.  And we did have

          8  testimony at the last hearing, and we have had

          9  testimony from the Commissioner here, and yet, you

         10  use the term arbitrary and capricious, and no

         11  evidence. And yet, I think you are being presented

         12  with logical evidence, and it is certainly, you

         13  know, any court reviewing it would not find a

         14  decision to ban open web steel joists to be

         15  arbitrary and capricious, which is a legal term I am

         16  familiar with.

         17                 So I do not really get it.  And

         18  unless you can show me that the Department of

         19  Buildings is just flat out wrong, or why, I see no

         20  reason for the Department of Buildings to change

         21  their recommendation on this legislation.

         22                 DR. FISHER:  The problem that I have

         23  is that the Department of Buildings has not

         24  presented that argument.  They have presented only

         25  the argument that NIST is doing studies, and that
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          2  will show what is right and what is wrong.

          3                 In contacting my friends at NIST,

          4  they are studying the progressive collapse issue,

          5  which is an extremely important issue in

          6  construction, and that is a major issue.  But

          7  nothing has been presented to us in the form of new

          8  research, new information that says that open web

          9  steel joists with sprayed on fireproofing is a

         10  dangerous product.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So is the

         12  NIST study on progressive study, or as Council

         13  Member Oddo whispers pancaking, does that involve

         14  open web steel joists?

         15                 DR. FISHER:  I would assume it would,

         16  yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  All right, it

         18  sounds like another pretty good reason to be

         19  concerned, don't you think?

         20                 DR. FISHER:  But maybe a reason to be

         21  concerned with all construction.  It is a reason to

         22  be concerned with all construction.  We are now

         23  having to design all buildings for the federal

         24  government with columns removed.  You are going to

         25  have to be able to take out a column, and the
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          2  building must stand.  And that is a very good rule.

          3                 We engineers do realize though, that

          4  if you take out, you know, a quarter of the columns

          5  in a building, it is not going to stand, regardless

          6  of what laws we pass.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well I think

          8  the fact that so many different people with

          9  expertise have their suspicious eye on open web

         10  steel joists is a reason for concern, on my part.

         11                 DR. FISHER:  We would just like to

         12  know who those people are?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well

         14  apparently, NIST, they are studying the open,

         15  progressive collapse.  The Department of Buildings,

         16  the Structural Safety Working Group of the WTC Task

         17  Force, and the Fire Department, would be four.

         18                 DR. FISHER:  It would be nice to have

         19  them tell us they are doing that, but they are not

         20  telling us that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         22  Member Jackson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         24  Good afternoon. So, when you started to give your

         25  presentation, I said, well they presented at the
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          2  last hearing, you were here.  And so is there

          3  anything new from what you said last time to this

          4  time, or is it just the same stuff?

          5                 DR. FISHER:  It is basically the same

          6  stuff, Sir, except the word "temporary" has been

          7  removed from the wording.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Because in

          9  listening to the Commissioner's testimony, in her

         10  testimony it has "temporary."

         11                 DR. FISHER:  She said temporary, but

         12  when we look at the documents --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You mean the

         14  proposed legislation.

         15                 DR. FISHER: - -  in the proposed

         16  legislation, the word "temporary" is not there.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So it was

         18  there two months ago, but it is not there now?

         19                 DR. FISHER:  That is my

         20  understanding, yes, Sir.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Has your

         22  Institute or the group that you represent, have you

         23  had meetings with the Commissioner or

         24  representatives from the Department of Buildings and

         25  ask specific information in order to support, you
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          2  know, their recommendation for a "temporary" ban.

          3                 DR. FISHER:  Yes, Sir, we had one

          4  meeting a month or so ago, and we asked for

          5  information, we asked to be consulted. And the

          6  response was in the letter that was attached, that

          7  really they are waiting for a positive response

          8  after the NIST studies.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And what

         10  about the World Trade Center Groups, have you met

         11  with them?

         12                 DR. FISHER:  No, I know several other

         13  people on the Committee, and we cannot find any

         14  documentation that points to a problem with open web

         15  steel joists.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But when you

         17  said you have not met with them, have you requested

         18  to meet with them, do you think it is beneficial to

         19  meet with them to discuss this situation and to

         20  inform them what your, you know, technical, as an

         21  engineer findings are?

         22                 DR. FISHER:  Tim has pointed out to

         23  me, and I did not introduce Tim, but I think Madam

         24  Chairwoman did, Tim Day.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Who is Tim,
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          2  again?

          3                 MR. DAY:  Vice President of the Steel

          4  Joist Institute.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, you

          6  are the president, okay.

          7                 DR. FISHER:  Our representation with

          8  the World Trade Center Commission was done through

          9  the American Institute of Steel Construction, they

         10  represented SJI during those meetings.  And I am not

         11  privy to what went on.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, but

         13  you had a representative there.

         14                 DR. FISHER:  Yes, Sir.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And I tend

         16  to go with what my colleague, Lew Fidler, said, you

         17  know, I am a legislator and I am not an engineer.

         18  We are listening to the information, the

         19  recommendations of the Department of Buildings and

         20  others.

         21                 What type of position do you want us

         22  to take as the legislative members that have to vote

         23  on this, what is your recommendation?

         24                 DR. FISHER:  My recommendation is to

         25  base your vote on sound, scientific, and engineering
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          2  principles, of which none have been presented to us,

          3  or that I know of any, unless NIST comes up with

          4  something.  And if they do, then I would fully

          5  support what NIST eventually finds.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And do you

          7  know, have any idea when that recommendation is

          8  coming down?

          9                 DR. FISHER:  No, Sir, I do not.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  A year, two

         11  years, six months?

         12                 DR. FISHER:  Yes, we have not been

         13  told, I would hope it is soon.  I would hope it is

         14  within a year, but I have no control over them,

         15  certainly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now I

         17  believe you had given testimony earlier on that the

         18  buildings in New York City there are very few that

         19  are made of the materials that you are referring to.

         20  Is that correct?

         21                 DR. FISHER:  Mr. Hackworth may have

         22  mentioned that, I did not do that testimony.  But

         23  there are not that many buildings with open web

         24  steel joists above the 75- foot level.  However, we

         25  have many manufacturers that are coming out with a
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          2  brand new product called composite open web steel

          3  joists, but that is the market that they are aiming

          4  at.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So would

          6  this ban, or temporary ban, have an impact on that

          7  future product that you are expecting to come out

          8  with?

          9                 DR. FISHER:  Very definitely.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Just to

         13  clarify the record, the word "temporary" was not in

         14  the original legislation, it is not in this, and it

         15  was not in the original.

         16                 You also raised a good point about

         17  them testifying, because we only use, you know, let

         18  you testify once.  But since it was an issue, we let

         19  the Commissioner kind of emphasize her position, and

         20  we allowed the rebuttal.

         21                 DR. FISHER:  I would like to make one

         22  more point if I could?  And that is, this business

         23  of the banning of the joist rather than simply

         24  saying banning of open web joists with sprayed on

         25  fireproofing.  Do you understand the difference?
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          2  That there are fire ratings other than spray on that

          3  could be used on these products, and there is no

          4  evidence whatsoever that I know of about an issue

          5  with the other types of fire rated systems, only

          6  spray on here.  And the Department of Buildings

          7  answered that question as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

          9  very much, I do not think we have any more

         10  questions.  Thank you.

         11                 DR. FISHER:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Peter

         13  Malkin.

         14                 MR. MALKIN:  Madam Chairwoman and

         15  members of the Committee, thank you very much for

         16  the opportunity to make a presentation to you.  I am

         17  here representing ownership of approximately 11

         18  million square feet of Class E office buildings,

         19  pre- war, Pre- World War II construction, masonry

         20  steel, concrete, and also as a Governor of the Real

         21  Estate Board of New York.

         22                 My presentation is to express the

         23  hope - -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Could you

         25  pull the mic maybe a little more towards you?
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          2                 MR. MALKIN:  Can you hear me now?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes, that is

          4  better.

          5                 MR. MALKIN:  Okay.  My presentation

          6  is the expression of the hope that this Committee

          7  will modify the pending legislation to draw a

          8  distinction between Pre- World War II steel,

          9  concrete, and masonry construction, and post- World

         10  War II skin buildings with central air conditioning,

         11  and without the same fire rating.

         12                 We have owned buildings that are

         13  subject to this law for 60 years.  We have never had

         14  a fire or other impact incident, which has resulted

         15  in multi- floor or major disaster.  I call your

         16  attention specifically to the B- 25 Bomber, which

         17  flew into the Empire State Building, which is one of

         18  the buildings, which I am involved in owning.  Where

         19  both the impact and the fire that resulted from the

         20  fuel was restricted to the floors actually hit,

         21  where there was no structural damage or impairment

         22  of the building, where the fire did not spread.  And

         23  the reason is that the construction of the Empire

         24  State Building and other Pre- World War II buildings

         25  is very different from the construction of the World
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          2  Trade Center and post- World War II buildings.

          3                 The Pre- World War II steel, masonry,

          4  and concrete buildings are much heavier in mass and

          5  weight, have much stronger columns support, do not

          6  have exterior curtain walls through which fire and

          7  smoke can circulate, but rather have

          8  compartmentalized areas in the buildings, which are

          9  concrete and fire rated, or concrete block.

         10                 The result also, is that there is no

         11  central air conditioning, fan- forced air, air

         12  conditioning in these prior buildings.  And it is

         13  through the central forced air systems that the

         14  smoke and fire, and the pollution that impacts

         15  people circulates.  And these do not exist in the

         16  Pre- World War II buildings.

         17                 Also, the emergency stairs in the

         18  Pre- World War II buildings generally are not

         19  interlocking, and they are at separate places in the

         20  building.  So that you do not have the situation

         21  where an impact or a fire, which effects one

         22  emergency stairway, may effect both.  They are

         23  different locations within the building separated by

         24  considerable distance, and therefore, they are not

         25  anywhere as near as likely to directly impact it.
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          2                 There is no evidence of adequate,

          3  statistical presentation presented to the Council

          4  with regard to causes of fires and outcomes of

          5  fires, or impacts in Pre- World War II concrete,

          6  masonry, and steel buildings.  It is just a

          7  completely different kind of structure design and

          8  strength.  And we believe that there should be a

          9  significant difference recognized in the

         10  legislation.

         11                 To give you an example of what is

         12  involved in the buildings which I am involved in the

         13  ownership, the estimate for the cost of putting in

         14  the systems that have been required, or would be

         15  required, is over $125 million.  In the Empire State

         16  Building, it would be over $25 million alone.  And

         17  yet, this is a building that sustained a bomber,

         18  loaded bomber crash without any damage to the

         19  structure, the building itself, or to any portion of

         20  the building not directly actually hit by the plane.

         21                 We also urge that a recognition be

         22  given in multi tenant buildings generally, also, the

         23  Pre- World War II buildings where you have multi-

         24  tenants on a single floor.  The Commissioner spoke

         25  about multi- tenant buildings where a tenant
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          2  occupies three full floors.  And you could put a

          3  system in on those three full floors.  But in the

          4  Empire State Building, in two million and a quarter

          5  square feet we have 900 tenants, approximately.  We

          6  have five, ten, twenty tenants on a floor.  And to

          7  install a sprinkler system without taking into

          8  account the expiration of these leases would create

          9  tremendous hardship for the tenants on those floors.

         10                 It is one thing in new construction,

         11  it is one thing in construction where there are full

         12  floor tenants where their leases expire and you can

         13  do the work, if they have not renewed. But where

         14  there are multiple tenants on a single floor, with

         15  different lease expirations, it becomes a much more

         16  difficult time to coordinate without terribly

         17  upsetting the tenants in doing business, and also,

         18  taking into account the fact that most of these

         19  tenants tend to renew.  So simply saying that on the

         20  expiration of a single tenant lease, on a single

         21  floor, where there are multiple tenants is a time to

         22  install sprinklers within the 15- year limit, we do

         23  not think is reasonable.

         24                 So basically, what I am saying is, I

         25  think that there should be a separate set of rules
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          2  for the Pre- World War II construction, concrete,

          3  masonry, and fireproof steel construction as

          4  compared to Post- World War II, that there be a

          5  waiver for such buildings which meet the

          6  requirements.  That where the system is required to

          7  be installed in such buildings that there be some

          8  kind of cost mitigation in the form of a real estate

          9  tax credit or deduction to cover this cost, which is

         10  not recoverable from tenants or in rent.  And that

         11  the 15- year limitation not apply strictly to those

         12  buildings that have multiple tenants on a single

         13  floor with different lease expirations.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         16  Council Member Jackson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We are glad

         19  to have you here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON;  Is your

         21  organization, are you representing yourself, or do

         22  you represent a group of an organization?

         23                 MR. MALKIN: I am representing myself,

         24  as an owner of these buildings.  I am also here as a

         25  Governor of the Real Estate Board of New York, which
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          2  is concerned about this same issue for this type of

          3  building.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Has your

          5  organization had meetings with the Department of

          6  Buildings and express your concern about this

          7  matter, and what, if anything, has the Department of

          8  Buildings opinion or recommendation, has been as a

          9  result of what you had to say?

         10                 MR. MALKIN:  My understanding is that

         11  these issues have been raised by the Real Estate

         12  Board of New York with the Department of Buildings

         13  reflecting not only the buildings I am involved in

         14  ownership of, but of all buildings of similar

         15  construction.  And we are awaiting a modification,

         16  hopefully, in the recommendation.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now you

         18  indicated that, what was it, a B- 52 Bomber?

         19                 MR. MALKIN:  B- 25.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  B- 25, what

         21  year was that, Sir?

         22                 MR. MALKIN:  This is 1945.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And the

         24  Empire State Building was built when, in 1935?

         25                 MR. MALKIN:  In 1931.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  In 1931.

          3  What floor was the impact on?

          4                 MR. MALKIN:   I think it was the 45th

          5  floor, 45th and 46th floor that were actually hit.

          6  I am not positive that is the right floor or not,

          7  but approximately that.  And the plane flew right

          8  into the building, and the fuel exploded, and we had

          9  something, obviously, smaller than a 747, but a

         10  similar incident with similar fuel.  And the

         11  construction of that building, the steel did not

         12  melt, the steel was fireproof, the

         13  compartmentalization floors, with their separate

         14  concrete floors separating without curtain walls

         15  through which fire and smoke could travel, the fire

         16  was contained.  And while there were some people who

         17  were actually sitting by the window in the Catholic

         18  Charities Office that got hit, who were killed, it

         19  did not spread outside the spaces directly impacted.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         22  very much.

         23                 MR. MALKIN:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have

         25  three more witnesses, I am going to call you all up,
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          2  on this topic, I thought you all understood that.

          3  Timothy Collins, Captain Harry Ackley, and Karen

          4  Levey- Lynch.  Warren, do not get too close to those

          5  guys, they are on the opposite side of the issue.

          6  If you guys could move over a little bit.  Timothy

          7  Collins, do you want to go first?

          8                 MR. COLLINS:  Thank you, City Council

          9  members for allowing us to come here and discuss our

         10  interest in the changes for Intro. 126, specifically

         11  the egress path marking system and exit lighting.  I

         12  am a Fire Protection Engineer of the City of New

         13  York working for an independent consulting firm.  I

         14  do not represent any product or Fire Protection

         15  entity, or building owner or manager.

         16                 I am here to really provide my

         17  professional opinion on this Intro. And what it

         18  represents.  The change proposed by the City Council

         19  is based upon language from the World Trade Center

         20  Task Force from February 2003.  Item No. 6 of that

         21  recommendation recommends "to improve marking of

         22  egress path doors and stairs. However, it limits the

         23  means by which these marking system are accomplished

         24  by simply photoluminescence, this has been discussed

         25  prior and including Ms. Lancaster.  It seems to
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          2  limit it just to photoluminescence type of materials

          3  for egress paths and doors. Although, these

          4  materials are useful for this application, I believe

          5  they should still remain in the proposed change, it

          6  is not the only recognized, and I mean recognized in

          7  the industry as the only reliable egress path

          8  marking technology.

          9                 NFPA 101 and UL 1994 have two other

         10  technologies, which are power operated.  I

         11  understand that there was some concern about the

         12  power operated, but I think they are actually very

         13  reliable and should be included.  The other two are

         14  simply defined at electroluminescence and self-

         15  luminous type egress marking systems.  These two

         16  other technologies have been applied and proven to

         17  be successful and reliable for providing safe

         18  marking and a multitude building occupancies for

         19  egress proximity.  And I believe limiting the New

         20  York City building to only one egress marking

         21  technology, the photoluminescence, would be a true

         22  and unjustified mistake.

         23                 As an engineer, I do provide design

         24  and consulting engineering to building and architect

         25  and owners, and this would limit my ability on what

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  I could specify and design, simply as that.  I

          3  believe we should go in the direction of including

          4  in our code the option for building owners,

          5  managers, architects and fire protection engineers,

          6  like myself, to have the option to specify any or

          7  all of these three:  Photoluminescence,

          8  electroluminescence, or self- luminous.  We should

          9  not limit the code to one of these technologies,

         10  which by limiting it to one technology, and I

         11  understand Ms. Lancaster is open to other

         12  technologies, but if you are writing the code, as we

         13  know, if you say photoluminescence, if you want

         14  something else, you would have to go for a variance

         15  or request for reconsideration to install something

         16  else, unless somehow the Commissioner sees fit to

         17  avoid that process and maybe just say luminescent

         18  lighting.

         19                 As a consulting engineer, maybe you

         20  know they are actually changing the code, or looking

         21  at changing the code in the City.  And the way the

         22  codes and engineers work these days is on

         23  performance- based.  We do not say photoluminescence

         24  or even luminescent, we provide a specification

         25  based on a performance.  It must perform and be
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          2  reliable for eight hours, one hour, two hours,

          3  whatever, it is a performance base, and we do not

          4  specify a type of product  It is a performance- base

          5  code.

          6                 So maybe not even going through

          7  specifying a type of luminescent, just a

          8  performance, and I would be willing to work with the

          9  Committee and the Code Committee's to write that

         10  language in the Code, if need be.

         11                 In fact, in retrospect to the same

         12  Task Force Item No. 6, which mentions this

         13  photoluminescence in the same sentence, it proposes

         14  to eliminate photoluminescence as it signs and make

         15  them powered.  So why are we providing non- powered

         16  egress marking, and telling our code in the same

         17  sentence to eliminate the photoluminescence exit

         18  sign and go to powered.  It seems like we are behind

         19  the technology in the marking system, and bringing

         20  our exit signs up to powered.  We are making our

         21  marking systems non powered, and our exit signs

         22  powered.  Building, since 1969, have been allowed to

         23  have photophosphorescent (sic), I think is the word,

         24  phosphorescent exit signs, non- lit.  Well that Task

         25  Force is saying get rid of this phosphorescent-
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          2  glow- in- the- dark, we want lit powered exit signs.

          3    But they are still allowing photoluminescence

          4  half- marking.  Why not allow powered path marking,

          5  why limit it to one technology?  That is my concern,

          6  as an engineer I would be limited and so would be

          7  the building's owners, managers, and the safety of

          8  the people who occupy them.

          9                 It is my belief that if we put this

         10  in the code as photoluminescence, we will, one day,

         11  be changing that, or being second- guessed on why we

         12  only limited to photoluminescence.  Why would we

         13  want to be second- guessed on providing just

         14  photoluminescence now, when at the same time we are

         15  getting rid of photophosphorescent exit signs?  I

         16  think it would be a good idea to even require

         17  electrical type powered systems in new buildings,

         18  and maybe for retrofit, allow the photoluminescence

         19  type for retrofit applications.

         20                 Duly noted that the photoluminescence

         21  technology definition in NFPA states that its light

         22  will last for a length of time, as it was duly noted

         23  before, and it is only as reliable as the exposed

         24  light around it, the natural ambient light around

         25  it. How long and how bright the photoluminescence
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          2  light will provide a safe level of path marking, of

          3  course, depends on that surrounding light.

          4                 In support of my testimony for

          5  proposing to include the other two technologies that

          6  are recognized already by NFPA and UL, these are

          7  retro- luminescent, self- luminous egress, I offer

          8  the following for how these two technologies perform

          9  and would benefit our code and the safety of the

         10  City building occupants for reliable egress.  They

         11  are not dependent on ambient light, they are

         12  recognized by UL and NFPA.  They provide high

         13  visibility in smoke conditions for its lighted

         14  duration, they do not diminish their light as time

         15  goes on.  They show reliability of constant bright

         16  lighting through reliable power sources, battery

         17  backup, they can be connected to an emergency

         18  generator.  They could be provided with U- redundant

         19  battery backup, as well as the generator.  They

         20  could be installed in a Class A, and this is an

         21  engineering electrical term, Class A configuration,

         22  where if part of the electronics to this lighted

         23  system fails, there is a Class A redundant circuit

         24  that will keep it lit.  If you lose one- half of the

         25  circuit, there is a Class A or a redundant circuit
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          2  that can be installed to maintain its light

          3  throughout the duration.  They can be activated upon

          4  a fire alarm condition.  They can report a trouble

          5  condition, trouble, if it goes into trouble, it

          6  could tell the fire alarm, which can tell central

          7  station facility that there is a trouble with this

          8  emergency lighting.  It has its own self diagnostic

          9  test, you can test it daily, hourly, you can do its

         10  own self- test.  It is very low- power draw, and it

         11  is easy installation for new, and retrofit

         12  applications is very broad.  It has long life with

         13  little maintenance costs.

         14                 And presently, legislation is in

         15  effect in California, Rhode Island, and being

         16  considered in several other states.  And I just read

         17  a document from the New Haven Public School that it

         18  has been mandated to be put in all public schools.

         19  And from what I heard from the Port Authority they

         20  are going to and are putting it in Trade Center 7

         21  and the remainder of the sites when they go up.

         22                 Information, we should not expose our

         23  code to future second- guessing by exclusion of the

         24  power type, egress path marking technologies.  They

         25  are highly reliable, offer continuous bright lighted
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          2  pathways that are recognized by national code and

          3  standards, and should be seriously considered for

          4  inclusion in the Recommendation No. 6, Task Force

          5  Recommendation No. 6 under Intro. 126 incorporated

          6  into the Building Code of the City of New York.

          7                 I know in comparison, if I were to go

          8  to buy, lease, or rent a car, I would not want to be

          9  told that I can only get a compact car, if that car

         10  does not meet the performances that I am looking

         11  for.

         12                 Thank you very much.  I am available

         13  for questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:   Mr. Ackley,

         15  I just ask you to try to be brief because we are way

         16  over, we still have two pieces to go through, and

         17  try not to be repetitive.

         18                 MR. ACKLEY:  Yes, Ma'am, I will be

         19  very brief.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Good.

         21                 MR. ACKLEY:  Madam Chairwoman,

         22  Committee, thank you very much for this opportunity

         23  to address the electroluminescence paradigm change.

         24  Electroluminescence is a paradigm change in the

         25  science of fire safety, life safety, and building
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          2  construction.

          3                 The fire science technology of

          4  electroluminescence has opened the door to

          5  significant new developments and expectations in

          6  building evacuation and life safety systems.  A

          7  powerful dimension into the future and the way in

          8  which we ensure public safety is available, and when

          9  I am talking public safety, I am also talking about

         10  our emergency responders.  This new technology is an

         11  extension of past lessons learned taking us into a

         12  future in response to demand for greater resources

         13  and availability of technology in the interest of

         14  the safety and reliability of egress and occupancy

         15  illumination.

         16                 Electroluminescence is reliable.

         17  Most of the time electroluminescence will go without

         18  maintenance and it is reliable, 30 years without

         19  maintenance.  I have been informed that it will go

         20  up to 30,000 hours without a question, and now we

         21  are beyond that in technology.

         22                 Unsurpassed uniformity of

         23  illumination, it is not sporadic, it is not spotty,

         24  it is consistent and it is equal, and if you will

         25  look at the diagram in front of me, you will see on
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          2  the floor what it will look like, and I will hold

          3  that up for you in a second.

          4                 It is compact, low profile, and its

          5  ability to adjust to its avian condition is

          6  outstanding and acceptable.

          7                 It is brighter, it is ultra safe,

          8  high visibility illumination, and we are going to

          9  show you that shortly, with your permission.

         10                 It exceeds the requirements of NFPA

         11  101, the National Electric Code, OSHA, and all the

         12  existing requirements.

         13                 Energy consumption is excessively

         14  low.  It consumes up to a half of a watt.

         15                 It is durable, in many cases, when

         16  electroluminescent panels are being used you can put

         17  holes through them and they will still continue to

         18  burn and operate.  It has no light bulbs to burn

         19  out, and again, no maintenance to maintain that

         20  system.

         21                 It does not require external

         22  illumination.  It does not require external

         23  lamination to ensure its reliability and operation.

         24                 And at this point, I would like just

         25  to hold this up so you can see what we are talking
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          2  about and how a door would look in a total darkened

          3  area under this type of system.  And my associate in

          4  the back will hold up, with your permission, a

          5  diagram.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We really,

          7  this,- -

          8                 MR. ACKLEY:  Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: - -  we have

         10  no demonstrations of this at this hearing, please.

         11  Please just sum up so we can move on.

         12                 MR. ACKLEY:  To ensure installation

         13  flexibility and effectiveness, our basic in the

         14  summary is to ask you, we are looking to you, the

         15  public is looking to you, to establish a broad

         16  parameter and allow us to use available

         17  technologies, and not to limit those technologies in

         18  the interest of public safety.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         21  Karen.

         22                 MS. LEVEY- LYNCH:  Hi, thank you for

         23  the opportunity to address this Council, Madam

         24  Chairperson.  I am Karen Levy- Lynch from

         25  Johnsonite.  I am the Solutions Development
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          2  Consultant for this region.  And I am here to speak

          3  about photoluminescent markings.  We are a

          4  manufacturer of this material.  We do a full system

          5  of markings whether they are integrated into

          6  flooring, signage, tape, or paint.  And I was

          7  actually in touch with the New York City Building

          8  Codes' Office, and with James Kellogg, and we were

          9  discussing that in the last hearing there were some

         10  issue regarding the cost of this system, as far as

         11  whether it being viable, as far as cost, and also,

         12  whether it is viable exposed to two- foot candles of

         13  lighting, which is the Code within the New York

         14  City, current Code within the New York City

         15  requirement.  And so I am here to give testimony on

         16  those issues.

         17                 The photoluminescence material is

         18  rechargeable indefinitely.  It does not wear out.

         19  It is a fail- safe system that it operates from

         20  borrowed light within the environment, and it does

         21  not rely on any secondary source.  If there is a

         22  blackout, this material will operate because it

         23  naturally will emit illuminates that it will be, has

         24  been charged from the borrowed light in the

         25  environment.
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          2                 I want to give you the idea that it

          3  is affordable as far as the costs.  I have been

          4  asked to evaluate a one stairwell like 16 steps, an

          5  area of that size with perhaps some markings,

          6  nosings, handrails, and signage, and I have been

          7  able to come up with an idea that it would run in

          8  the range of $550 to $650 for one floor.  So just to

          9  give a sense of what this type of system might cost,

         10  I think there was a lot of concern as far as the

         11  cost effectiveness of the material.

         12                 Also, we have been, we have had the

         13  opportunity, we have been called upon to supply this

         14  material in areas where there would only be two-

         15  foot candles of light.  And the system does work, it

         16  does charge with that amount of light, and it is,

         17  you know, it is a fail- safe system.

         18                 So, again, it is terrific that this

         19  is being looked at as an option, and the system does

         20  not rely on other outside sources for its energy, as

         21  far as electricity or batteries, which in the past

         22  have proven to not be reliable 100 percent of the

         23  time. And you know, we have had failures within the

         24  lit areas of egress.

         25                 So that is what I wanted to testify
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          2  on today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

          4  you.  Council Member Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:   Karen, so

          6  your group deals with photo?

          7                 MS. LEVEY- LYNCH:  Photoluminescence,

          8  yes, it is the technology that was being

          9  recommended.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, now,

         11  and the question for this young man here.  What is

         12  your name?

         13                 MR. COLLINS:  Tim Collins.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Mr. Collins.

         15                 MR. COLLINS:  Yes, Sir.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now, I think

         17  you have indicated before in your opening statement

         18  that you are not here representing any group?

         19                 MR. COLLINS:  Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Were you

         21  hired by any group as a consultant to come give

         22  testimony?

         23                 MR. COLLINS:  No, I was not hired by

         24  any group, Sir.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.
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          2                 MR. COLLINS:  Just that I was aware

          3  of the Council meeting and felt that as an engineer

          4  who designs these systems that I would not want

          5  myself or the community to be limited to one type of

          6  technology.  I support all three.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I am sorry,

          8  Sir, you are saying electroluminescence.

          9                 MR. ACKLEY:  Electroluminescence,

         10  correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So in

         12  essence, you are talking about, you are here

         13  supporting electro-- Karen, you are here supporting

         14  photo, and you are saying it should be any of the

         15  options, as long as performance is the criteria.

         16                 MR. COLLINS:  Correct.

         17                 MS. LEVEY- LYNCH:  Correct.

         18                 MR. ACKLEY:  Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, all

         20  right, thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         22  all very much. It has been very illuminating.  That

         23  ends this conversation on 126 A.

         24                 We now move to External Evacuation

         25  Systems.  And we have Mr. Shimshoni.  If you are
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          2  off, you are on.

          3                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

          5                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Madam Chair and

          6  members of the Council, thank you for calling and

          7  convening these important hearings on the question

          8  of External Evacuation Solutions for High Rise

          9  Buildings.  My name is Dr. Yoni or Johnathan

         10  Shimshoni.  I am the CEO of the Escape Rescue

         11  Systems, a company that was established and

         12  dedicated to meeting the challenge of high- rise

         13  evacuation.

         14                 In the short time at my disposal, I

         15  would like to share with you some thoughts on why

         16  this issue, which is not new, should and can be

         17  dealt in more creative ways that could make

         18  skyscrapers a lot safer and more attractive than

         19  they are today.

         20                 Why is this issue so important, and

         21  why is it worth so much attention and time?  I would

         22  like to start by showing maybe a 10- 15 second clip.

         23    This is a short clip that really should explain

         24  why this is worth this kind of attention and time.

         25                 (Video shown).
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          2                 Okay, experience has shown us, and

          3  before that, I would like to say that this, Jose

          4  Viragos (phonetic) was saved, and this courageous

          5  fireman to the best of my knowledge, perished in the

          6  tragic 9/11 later on.

          7                 Experience has shown us that, in some

          8  cases, for all the care in design and safety, people

          9  get trapped in buildings, and sometimes they die.

         10  Even in cases in which many people can get out of

         11  buildings in such situations, many people of all

         12  ages, abilities and disabilities, simply cannot make

         13  it out, and so are discriminated against in the

         14  worst possible way.

         15                 Why are new approaches so important

         16  to consider? Because trying to further push the

         17  improvement other traditional solutions, such as

         18  widening staircases, is simply not good enough and

         19  not economically feasible, especially for existing

         20  buildings, but not only for them.

         21                 New York, as the urban capital of the

         22  world, has the opportunity to take a real leadership

         23  position in this critical area where much is being

         24  done and much is being developed.  Indeed, two of

         25  the primary organizations that define safety and
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          2  building codes, and standards, have already taken

          3  important steps toward acknowledging the need for

          4  external evacuation systems.  We believe that New

          5  York should join this kind of lead.

          6                 Why External Evacuation?

          7                 High- rise buildings can be traps.

          8  Their basic geometry is such that the surface area

          9  for egress, that is the base of the building, is

         10  very tiny relative to the height and huge number of

         11  people in them.  Therefore, act of nature and acts

         12  of people, both malicious acts and unintentional

         13  acts, can have devastating effects on life and

         14  property.

         15                 The inadequacy of current solutions

         16  is recognized by many important policy and

         17  professional bodies, both in the US and elsewhere.

         18  These include the World Trade Center Task Force, and

         19  we were just dealing with some of their findings,

         20  legislative initiatives in New York and Chicago,

         21  policies pursued overseas, such by the Israel

         22  Homeland Security Command and Fire Commission, the

         23  Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), NIST,

         24  which we heard about just recently, and many other

         25  organizations.
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          2                 The International Standards

          3  Organization, or ISO, has placed the improvement of

          4  high- rise evacuation at the center of its agenda.

          5  And in one of its recent publications ISO wrote,

          6   "Should we actually design buildings to withstand a

          7  severe impact, which may be a very low probability

          8  of occurring?  Probably not. However, should we

          9  design routes and methods of getting people out of

         10  buildings, which experienced the catastrophic event?

         11    Of course we should."

         12                 Improving the possibility of

         13  evacuation through the interior of building is

         14  important, but is not enough.

         15                 No matter how much we improve the

         16  staircases, banking on basically one way out means

         17  that if the route is compromised, tenants are left

         18  with no way out.

         19                 Internal routes, such as stairs, are

         20  inherently inequitable, and cannot be negotiated by

         21  people of all abilities.

         22                 These solutions do not address the

         23  challenge of getting responders up and into the

         24  buildings, often critical to successful evacuation.

         25                 And, improving on internal solutions
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          2  can be inordinately expensive.  Just think of

          3  widening a staircase in an existing building, or the

          4  cost of wider staircases in new construction, direct

          5  cost, indirect, social costs, et cetera. Therefore,

          6  we should broaden the portfolio of solutions to

          7  include the external dimension of high- rise

          8  buildings.

          9                 Actually, external evacuation is not

         10  really a new paradigm or a new direction.  And life

         11  safety in other codes recognizes External Escape

         12  Solutions for various circumstances. Fire

         13  Departments in the US and all over the world

         14  purchases and uses ladders and platforms to access

         15  emergencies, fight fires, and evacuate people.  But

         16  these solutions are limited today to the lower 11 or

         17  12, or sometimes 13 floors of a buildings, and have

         18  limited evacuation capacities.  Thus, today's use of

         19  the exterior is legitimate and is used, but in

         20  practice discriminates against the occupants of

         21  higher floors.  Thus, the use of the exterior is not

         22  a revolution, but rather an approach that needs

         23  considered and policy- directed evolution.

         24                 While we consider policy, innovation

         25  is busy creating solutions, and you can see our
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          2  plethora of external solutions being developed and

          3  offered by various innovators and entrepreneurs.

          4  These include control descent cables and devices,

          5  helium balloons, personal parachutes, escape chutes

          6  and slides, single platform devices, and multiple-

          7  platform devices.   As in any new endeavor and

          8  direction, not all of these will prove to be equally

          9  effective, equitable, or safe.  But the approach

         10  should be adopted and developed professionally, and

         11  the solution should be studied and tried.

         12                 The following short video described

         13  the solution developed and offered by my company.

         14  Other vendors that are present today will, I am

         15  sure, demonstrate their offering.  Note that despite

         16  the animated presentation you will see on this

         17  video, the system like many of the others you will

         18  see, is well developed, and our particular system is

         19  what we truly believe, from its first operational

         20  installation on a high- rise building in Tel Aviv.

         21                 (Video shown.)

         22                 As I said, that is one example of

         23  many initiatives in this area, and later on you will

         24  probably be seeing several more.

         25                 Fortunately, professional
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          2  organizations, as I mentioned earlier, have decided

          3  to move forward in this direction. The means of

          4  Egress Committee of the National Fire Protection

          5  Association has recently acted to accept this

          6  approach to evacuation and to begin a definition of

          7  acceptable solutions.

          8                 In its meeting last December, the

          9  Committee voted to give preliminary recognition to

         10  exclude certain types of systems, such as

         11  helicopters, parachutes, helium balloons, define

         12  critical system requirements, such as capacity,

         13  redundancy, safety, and noted in its deliberations

         14  the importance of providing ascendability or a way

         15  up for responders, and the true importance of the

         16  capability of transporting "small children and

         17  disabled persons" when evacuating a building.

         18                 The Committee on the Performance of

         19  Buildings of the American Society for Testing and

         20  Materials (ASTM) has very recently decided to

         21  undertake the definition of standards for external

         22  evacuation systems of high- rise buildings, and in

         23  defining the scope of activity this Committee,

         24  adopted exclusion similar to those of the NFPA, and

         25  directed that standards be developed expeditiously
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          2  for control descent devices, escape shoots, and

          3  platform- base system similar of the kind that you

          4  just saw in this video.  Thus, we can see that two

          5  of the most prestigious and influential,

          6  professional organizations in the areas of fire

          7  safety and building standards have decided that this

          8  new area should be taken seriously, adopted, and

          9  approached in a most professional manner.

         10                 In conclusion, innovation has created

         11  a real opportunity for new and far more effective

         12  approaches to making skyscrapers safe, and safer for

         13  everyone in them, regardless of the floor they are

         14  on and their person ability to move.  Exploiting the

         15  exterior is not really a revolution, but rather a

         16  traditional approach that can now be developed and

         17  extended in truly effective ways.  Like any

         18  departure from current practice, doing so requires

         19  leadership, often by professional bodies, and we saw

         20  this is happening, and by policy- makers, such as

         21  the City government of New York.

         22                 We ask that you consider, or as you

         23  consider City policy in this area, you initiate

         24  experimentation and study in and by the City, and

         25  keep this issue in mind as you address the City's
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          2  Building Code in the coming months.

          3                 Thank you very much for your

          4  attention and time.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Leroy,

          6  Council Member Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  This Escape

          8  System that you have here.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Could

         10  you speak a little bit more into the mic, please?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I am sorry.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  What is the

         15  maintenance required?  What is the cost of one of

         16  these units?

         17                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Okay, the cost of,

         18  specifically, you are about the particular system

         19  that I showed, the cost, the unit is a building,

         20  first of all.  So if I am outfitting an entire

         21  building, and that could have between some two and

         22  three of these systems on it, so you would have

         23  enough redundancy for cases where you could not

         24  access one of the sides of the building, we are

         25  talking about, and I did not mention the capacity in
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          2  each one of these subsystems to evacuate about 150

          3  people each time it runs.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  One hundred

          5  and fifty people for each?

          6                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  For each subsystem,

          7  for each RA.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Each RA.

          9                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Each cabin would have

         10  30 people, each RA has five cabins, it got about 150

         11  people per RA, and you have two or three on the

         12  building.  So each run, you are evacuating 450 or

         13  500 people out of the building.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  How is this

         15  being operated? I mean you heard earlier testimony

         16  about the electrical systems being cut, or how are

         17  you going to operate a system like this?

         18                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  In terms of command

         19  and control of the system, it has a wireless, a

         20  radio- control system.  The control panel is about

         21  the size of a laptop computer, and they would be

         22  redundant pieces of that equipment, so if one went

         23  or blew up in the lobby, you would still have

         24  another one.  That is the command and control, and

         25  it goes directly through the roof where there are
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          2  antennae, and it gets operated.  In terms of the

          3  electrical source, in terms of the energy to run the

          4  system, the system runs on the business emergency

          5  power, and it has its own generator, in case that

          6  gets cut off.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, but the

          8  example that you showed in the video, you got from

          9  here, I am looking on this picture here.

         10                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  You have one,

         12  two, three, four, five, six systems in place, and

         13  that is from what you showed. How much is this

         14  system costing?

         15                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Okay, first of all,

         16  we are expecting the regulators that NFPA have

         17  directed us to have fewer systems, more like two or

         18  three, and the cost for an entire building, if it is

         19  40- or 45- story building it is probably in the

         20  order of one to one and a half million dollars.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you are

         22  asking us to consider, you are asking us to consider

         23  making this part of our regulation, that we would

         24  not just consider your system, but systems in

         25  general, correct?
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          2                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  What I am asking is

          3  that you consider External Evacuation Solutions in

          4  general, not necessarily this particular system, as

          5  you consider the Building Code going forward, and

          6  also specifically that you condone and support the

          7  execution of pilots and experimentation in the City

          8  so that you and the executive bodies could learn

          9  more about it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  But

         11  don't you think that this system would require a

         12  high degree of tutoring, or training and operation?

         13  I mean I saw where you had personnel that were going

         14  on to go up, personnel that was, I mean, you already

         15  have, technically, fire marshals for each floor, if

         16  people are doing a fire evacuation system.

         17                 You said you are getting ready to

         18  install one of these systems, where, in Tel Aviv.

         19                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Have you

         21  installed the system before?  I mean, what is the

         22  human fear ratio with this kind of system?

         23                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Well the system is

         24  intended to be used as an extra or redundant level

         25  for evacuation when the normal way out, are not
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          2  operable.  So I guess it is relative here, I mean

          3  what is relative to you being stuck behind in a

          4  building and burning in it or collapsing with it

          5  versus getting out of a system that may be

          6  problematic in terms of fear to get out.

          7                 The way we designed this particular

          8  system is that getting on it is very similar to

          9  getting onto an elevator, and that is the feeling.

         10  We have experimented with this, and the people

         11  getting on, it is not quite an elevator, but it is

         12  very similar, you do not see the sky, you do not see

         13  ground.  You see an opening, you have been drilled,

         14  you know that that is the place you go, if you are

         15  instructed to.  And getting on it is quite simple,

         16  you walk up some stairs, and if you are in a

         17  wheelchair, you can be ramped up and you find

         18  yourself on it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And this

         20  system that you proposed, are you putting it in a

         21  new building in Tel Aviv?  Is the building being

         22  designed for it, or are you putting it in, in an

         23  existing building?

         24                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  No, we are putting it

         25  in, in an existing building.  There is no point in
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          2  having solutions that are only good for buildings in

          3  the future, since, look outside, I mean. We have the

          4  buildings we have.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.  And

          6  are you offering some kind of rebate or discount to

          7  the landlords?  Have you been shopping this in New

          8  York City at all, what has been the response from

          9  the real estate community on it?

         10                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  We have spoken to a

         11  fair number in the real estate community, and I do

         12  not want to speak for them. But their response has

         13  been quite positive, we have three owners who are

         14  willing, that is, desirous of having a pilot project

         15  performed on their property.  And they would

         16  actually like to apply with us for approval to do a

         17  pilot project.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes.  And I

         19  am still not understanding, if a building loses its

         20  power, how do you maintain and operate this system.

         21                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Okay, the system has

         22  its own emergency generator on the roof by the

         23  system.  And that emergency generator will kick in

         24  automatically on a standby basis when the building's

         25  power fails.  First it will draw on the regular
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          2  power, and then the emergency power of the building,

          3  and if that fails, it will draw on its own emergency

          4  generator.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes, and this

          6  system would be primarily for fires, or it would

          7  work if there was no structural damage to the

          8  building.  If there was something like a bombing or

          9  an earthquake, how would it work if there were

         10  structural, or a plane crashing into it, how would

         11  it operate, if there were structural damage to the

         12  building?

         13                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  I think that would

         14  require a situation assessment by whoever is

         15  commanding.  And if there are situations in which

         16  there could be a bombing in the lobby, and there is

         17  enough structural integrity of the building columns

         18  to operate the system --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Well those

         20  rails you have on the side of the building, those

         21  are fixed, right?  They do not sway, they are, what

         22  are they, rubber, or what is it, steel?

         23                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  The rails on the side

         24  of the building do not support the system, they only

         25  prevent lateral movement in the wind.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  What are they

          3  made out of?

          4                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  They are made either

          5  out of steel, or in buildings that have a rail for

          6  the window cleaning rig, the system actually locks

          7  into that, so you do not add a rail.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Well I

          9  appreciate your ingenuity, and I am curious to see

         10  if anyone is going to actually utilize this system.

         11  It just looks pretty complicated to me, I do not

         12  know if there is an easier solution, to tell you the

         13  truth. But I just appreciate your coming today.

         14                 Is that video on this?

         15                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Yes, it is.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And how long

         17  have you been working on this in the New York City

         18  area?

         19                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  In the New York City

         20  area, several months.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, all

         22  right.  I have a lot of questions, but I know we

         23  have a limited amount of time.  I am just curious to

         24  see what the human interaction with this kind of

         25  system would be.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  What I am

          3  going to do, is changing the plan a little bit here.

          4    I am going to have, I think we have three

          5  presenters.  So what I am going to do, is have all

          6  the presenters present.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I am done,

          8  thank you, Madam Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And then we

         10  can do questions, if you, I do not know if they can

         11  all stay, you know, like can you?

         12                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you,

         15  Madam Chair, I will wait.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have also

         17  been joined, I did not get a chance to introduce

         18  you, Councilwoman Gale Brewer. Do you have

         19  questions, or, okay, okay?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  We are going

         21  to ask questions later?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes, I

         23  figured let us hear all three presentations.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  It also
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          2  forces you to stay. Michael Godwin.

          3                 MR. GODWIN:  Good afternoon, Madam

          4  Chair, and members of the Committee.  I am an

          5  Englishman, come across from the UK to present you

          6  with my system, and thank you very much, indeed, for

          7  the opportunity that you are giving me.  We all know

          8  something of 9/11, and each of us, I am sure, has a

          9  reaction to it, probably everyone's is different.

         10  Mine, having spent 45 years in the elevator lift

         11  business, I turned my attention to thinking that

         12  lifts, of course, take you into buildings and move

         13  you around them, but do not do anything to get you

         14  out in an emergency.

         15                 And so, a year later, I turned my

         16  mind to that subject of getting out, and invented

         17  EGRESS.  My chief concern, I think, was the people

         18  who will be going into the new World Trade Center to

         19  serve and perhaps need some additional safeguards

         20  and safety for evacuation of that building in an

         21  emergency, other than the stairs.  And so to this

         22  end, I think each worker, each individual should

         23  have their own personal means of rapid escape. That

         24  will give a very important psychological assurance

         25  to each individual that their safety, to a large
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          2  extent, is in their own hands and they are in

          3  control.  And this can be brought about at a cost of

          4  less than $100 dollars per person.

          5                 So what is EGRESS?  As I have said,

          6  we have thought about lifts, and having spent 47

          7  years with elevators, there are certain things that

          8  may be proposed and could be done, but that is not

          9  the same as having the psychological assurance that

         10  you are in control and have your own means of

         11  getting out of the building.

         12                 So, EGRESS is a self- powered,

         13  gravity operated, rapid escape life jacket.  We have

         14  life jackets for ships, life jackets for aircraft,

         15  but we have not, as of yet, had life jackets for

         16  tall buildings.

         17                 Basically, each person has a very,

         18  has something similar to this.  It is a simple,

         19  parachute harness with a plastic backboard, and an

         20  energy conversion unit at the back.  This unit is to

         21  all intents and purposes an electric generator.

         22  When engaged in a track that has permanent magnet,

         23  it can produce a retarding force equal to the weight

         24  of the person, as well as providing the speed

         25  regulation that is also required.
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          2                 Here we see a person with the

          3  parachute harness and the backboard, and the energy

          4  conversion unit engaged in a track, which is about

          5  five inches wide, generating sufficient counter

          6  force to allow them to float gently downward at

          7  something of the order two meters per second.

          8                 Now how does this happen?  Well the

          9  laws of magnetism and induction have not changed in

         10  150 years, every motor, every generator works in the

         11  same way.  There is nothing new about those rules.

         12  A moving coil in a magnetic field will induce a

         13  voltage, and that voltage, if allowed, to a circuit

         14  or to current is allowed to circulate in the coil

         15  that will produce a breaking effect, a dynamic

         16  breaking effect.  And by adjusting the sizing of the

         17  magnetic energy transfer device, then the weight of

         18  the person is substantially, is totally counter

         19  weighted.

         20                 As far as the speed regulation is

         21  concerned, that is achieved by tuning the generator

         22  to an appropriate frequency depending on the number

         23  of poles that you see in the unit.  So that two

         24  meters per second, I am sorry to be using meters, I

         25  should be using feet a minute, but at two meters a
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          2  second that frequency will be around 60 cycles per

          3  second.

          4                 Now it is a serial transfer all the

          5  way down the building.  The track may be on the

          6  outside of the building, or it could be in the

          7  protected core of the building.  And with one single

          8  track the flow rate of person is of the order of 200

          9  every 15 minutes, this allows at least four and one-

         10  half seconds for the transfer onto the track from a

         11  revolving, at the particular muster station.

         12                 Here you see an overview of the track

         13  that contains the permanent magnets and the moving,

         14  energy conversion unit, the backflap, and the

         15  harness, somebody going down.

         16                 There is a the minimum of circuitry

         17  on this unit. There are no electronics, no switches.

         18    There are but three passage components, a

         19  capacitor or condenser, a conductant, and the

         20  resistance.  There are no maintenance, it is a

         21  completely passive unit.  And to add to the comfort

         22  of the person, there is a powerful light at the top

         23  of its head, energized by the amount of the

         24  electricity generated in his or her descent.

         25                 Now, how the people get onto tracks
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          2  and get away. Well there are enough tracks to divide

          3  the building up and the population up, and you are

          4  going to deal with 200 people in 15 minutes.  That

          5  gives you some idea of the number of tracks that may

          6  be required.  But there would be muster stations at

          7  particular points, and each person would go to their

          8  muster station, and they may have their life-

          9  jackets under their chairs or on the backs of their

         10  chairs, collect them and put them on.  They would

         11  then go to, with all I can say, a form of revolving

         12  door, which would permit as the door is moved around

         13  each quadrant for it to engage with a descending

         14  track.  And of course, there being at least four

         15  phases to this door, people would be getting ready

         16  on the other phases as it moves around.  There are

         17  no power required, it is just moved around by hand,

         18  it locks itself in the position where the track is

         19  engaged, and once that track is engaged, the person

         20  and the unit is released, and down they go.

         21                 And as fast as those people can get

         22  onto the revolving door, where I tentatively put one

         23  every four seconds, then they evacuate the building.

         24                 So, we see now how they may come

         25  down.  In this case, it is not the revolving door,
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          2  there are just two panels there.  But you can see

          3  the principle, whereby, the person comes against one

          4  of the tracks, there is a track on every side of the

          5  four, of the revolving door.  And as each one

          6  engages it, it revolves around, and down they go.

          7  And the faster you can turn the revolving the door,

          8  down they go.

          9                 So, recapping on the important

         10  aspects of this, I think, first of all, the high

         11  rate of egress from the building. And then, of

         12  course, there is nothing in the track that

         13  negligible, architectural alterations to the facade,

         14  as I say, it is only five inches wide.  And the cost

         15  of the track is something like $200 a foot.  But

         16  finally, the most significant value, I think of

         17  egress, will be the psychological reassurance that

         18  it will give as an additional safety measure, when

         19  you consider the cost of that is only $100 for the

         20  life jacket, to all the New York office workers who

         21  are about to enter the new tall buildings in the

         22  World Trade Center, because they are given that

         23  independence to get out.

         24                 Now that is all very well, and that

         25  is an artist's impression, and you might say, well,
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          2  there is an awful lot of work to be done to make it

          3  go.  Well, I am a hands- on inventor, and if I could

          4  ask my colleague to move, to work the computer, to

          5  go to the next slide, oh, he disappeared?  Where is

          6  the escape?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Where is

          8  that tech guy?

          9                 MR. GODWIN:  I have a one- minute

         10  video.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  No, the

         12  other guy, yellow tie, the other guy.

         13                 MR. GODWIN:  Can you take it onto the

         14  next thing, that is it, that is the one, yes, it is

         15  Windows Media.  There we are, can you turn the music

         16  up?  Off we go then.

         17                 In a little garage workshop, here I

         18  am taking a piece of normal, standard, chair lift

         19  track and fitting it with magnets.  There you see

         20  the permanent magnets, and there you see the energy

         21  conversion unit.

         22                 Here we are machining the parts and

         23  trying to make them all fit, and of course, the

         24  height of the garage limits how far I can travel.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Can I just
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          2  interrupt you at this point?

          3                 MR. GODWIN:  Just a few seconds, that

          4  is all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay,

          6  because we have two more presenters.

          7                 MR. GODWIN:  Just 30 seconds.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  This is

          9  something that just shows how you zip down the side

         10  of the building?

         11                 MR. GODWIN:  That is right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         13                 MR. GODWIN:  Indeed, the side of the

         14  building being only, I am afraid, two and a half

         15  meters high, that is all I have got.

         16                 There we have the track and the

         17  magnets fitted.  Now he is a pretty hefty bloke, and

         18  he is going to try to pull it, because he did not

         19  believe it would do anything, and it stopped him

         20  dead.

         21                 Here you see the seat, I put a seat

         22  on it in order that several people could ride it in

         23  different ways.  And there is the track nailed to

         24  the garage wall.  Finally, the connection of the

         25  capacitors and some test loads.
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          2                 There it goes.  The elevator fellows,

          3  will no doubt, recognize the buffer, and here am I

          4  coming down.  This, by the way, is about one meter

          5  per second, because that is all, it goes much faster

          6  two meters a second.  Here is another test load.

          7                 And here we are, here is the big

          8  heavy fellow coming down.  Now one of my sons, quite

          9  a lightweight.  And finally, the inventor.

         10                 And there it is, a $100 life jacket

         11  and the psychological reassurance for all those

         12  people that will have to, some day re- enter the

         13  World Trade Center.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         16  very much.  Also, we understand, thank you for

         17  making the trip from London.  If you want to hang

         18  out, we will have our next presenter.  Ralph Baker,

         19  Mark Baker, The Baker's Safety Equipment folks.  Is

         20  there someone else, Tony Quattro with you?

         21                 MR. BAKER:  Right here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, okay.

         23  Could we ask you to limit your introductory remarks?

         24                 MR. BAKER:  Good afternoon,

         25  Chairwoman Provenzano, members of the City Council
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          2  of New York City, and all that is in attendance here

          3  today.  First, I would like to thank you for this

          4  opportunity to come before you to discuss the

          5  extremely important topic of External Building

          6  Evacuation Systems in New York.

          7                 My name is Ralph T. Baker.  I am CEO

          8  of Baker Safety Equipment, Incorporated based in

          9  Townsend, Delaware, USA.  I am Past CEO of Baker

         10  Petroleum Transportation with a major 64- year- old

         11  Bulk Petroleum Transportation Company.  I am Past

         12  President of the Delaware Motor Transport

         13  Association, and for the past six years I have been

         14  appointed by the Governor of the State of Delaware

         15  to the Emergency, State of Delaware Emergency

         16  Response Commission, and I am working on my second

         17  term.

         18                 I would like to introduce my son,

         19  Mark Baker, Vice President of my company, and he is

         20  on the video camera right over there.  This is Tony

         21  Quattro.  Tony is a life- long friend, and a

         22  Colonel, retired Colonel of the US Army, and he is

         23  our sales manager.

         24                 In 1980, following the disastrous MGM

         25  Grand fire in Las Vegas, which took 84 lives, I
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          2  invented the Baker Life Chute, which is a patented

          3  device invented for the purpose of evacuating people

          4  from high- rise structures in case of fire,

          5  earthquake, terrorism, or any other catastrophe.

          6                 I would like to make a few remarks,

          7  show you a 6 minute video, and then take questions

          8  and answers, if I may?

          9                 Recent events here in New York City

         10  and around the world, certainly are more than

         11  evidence enough to point out the dire need for

         12  External Building Evacuating Systems that will

         13  provide for the safety and security beyond those

         14  that are permanently available to the masses who

         15  have to go to work in the many high- rise structures

         16  every day.  They do so, fully aware that in life-

         17  threatening emergencies existing means of escape may

         18  not be adequate to ensure their ultimate safety to

         19  the ground.

         20                 My device, the Baker Life Chute, is

         21  designed to permit escape where existing fire

         22  equipment or Building Code fire exit measures are

         23  incapable of providing a safe method due to inherent

         24  limitations in design and construction of mobility

         25  or availability.
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          2                 Let me add here that the Baker Life

          3  Chute is not intended for a substitute for any fixed

          4  fire escape, fire suppression or fire detection

          5  devices.  Rather, it offers another dimension for

          6  safety and precaution by providing a passage to

          7  safety for threatened victims when other means of

          8  escape may be damaged or inaccessible, or when all

          9  else fails.

         10                 The Baker Life Chute is a unique

         11  device that permits, rapid, mass- evacuation and is

         12  designed for quick and easy deployment.  It is

         13  essentially is a nylon mesh tube with a tensile

         14  strength of more than 80,000 pounds with three feet

         15  diameter metal rings attached at each end, and can

         16  carry a continuous flow of evacuees.

         17                 There are several models of the Baker

         18  Life Chute, which I will elaborate on later.

         19  However, the model I would envision that would be

         20  the most likely used in New York City would be our

         21  industrial model, which requires a fixed stainless

         22  steel cable, and is ideally suited for a roof top -

         23   -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Mr. Baker?

         25                 MR. BAKER:  Yes, Ma'am.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Could you

          3  possibly show the video as you speak?

          4                 MR. BAKER:  I think it would kind of

          5  conflict with what I am trying to say.  I will be

          6  through this very quick.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

          8  Because we have your testimony here, we do not

          9  really --

         10                 MR. BAKER:  Yes, I know, but I think

         11  a lot of people would like to hear what I have to

         12  say.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We are

         14  trying to move this along.

         15                 MR. BAKER:  I am going to go as fast

         16  as I can.  I appreciate it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         18                 MR. BAKER: - -  fixed stainless cable

         19  ideally suited for a roof- top to roof- top

         20  configuration, as well as direct evacuation to the

         21  ground.

         22                 It is simple to use and requires

         23  little or no instruction during times of emergency.

         24  Because the Baker Life Chute is designed to carry

         25  you out and away from the burning structure, when
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          2  you enter the Chute, you are immediately transported

          3  away from the dangers of the burning structure,

          4  rather than go straight down to the ground, where

          5  you might still be in danger from fire or falling

          6  debris, et cetera.  Also, once you enter the Chute,

          7  you are cradled in it and you really cannot see the

          8  ground, so there is no sensation of height, and you

          9  will see it in the video, when you look down you

         10  will see that you cannot see the ground.

         11                 Escape is accomplished by sliding

         12  down the Chute, slowing and controlling your

         13  descent, as appropriate by applying outward pressure

         14  with your feet and hands over your head.  There is

         15  no power, no electric, there is no mechanical, your

         16  body performs to do this.

         17                 Winds and rains do not affect it

         18  because the elements can pass through.

         19                 Retrieval is completed by retracting

         20  the Baker Life Chute up the cable accomplished by a

         21  Base Mount Electric Winch, installed solely for the

         22  purpose of retrieving the Life Chute following

         23  deployment, whether it be training or whatever.

         24                 When stored and packed, the Baker

         25  Life Chute is housed in the Industrial Model Canopy,
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          2  which is mounted on the roof- top of the high- rise

          3  structure from which the evacuation had been

          4  preplanned.  Everything in our device is preplanned.

          5                 The Life Chute is virtually

          6  maintenance free, when properly stored in its

          7  Canopy, thus protected from the elements. Also, we

          8  recommend physical and visual inspections during

          9  training sessions, which could be once a year, twice

         10  a year, whatever.

         11                 Test cords are incorporated in every

         12  Life Chute, expressly for test cord degradation and

         13  strength testing purposes. We are pleased to report

         14  that after nearly 15 years in service, the test

         15  results from other installations indicate that there

         16  has been minimal degradation.

         17                 We have several models:

         18                 The Portable Model provides maximum

         19  flexibility for safe evacuation from structure up to

         20  150 feet or approximately 15 stories.  This model

         21  has been installed on approximately 32 US Air

         22  Traffic Control Towers, located at various

         23  installations around the world.  I am talking Japan,

         24  Germany, England, Honduras, Alaska, we have done a

         25  lot of Air Control Towers.
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          2                 The Heavy Duty Model is a permanently

          3  located device, which is appropriate for roof

          4  structures over 150 feet and can be moved rapidly to

          5  any of several predetermined roof- top locations.

          6  This model can also be adapted to an Air- Lift

          7  variation, which may be transported by helicopter

          8  for use during emergency operations.

          9                 The Cable- Guided Industrial Model is

         10  especially designed for use in highly congested

         11  complexes and ideally suite for going from one high-

         12  rise structure to nearby adjacent high- rise

         13  structure, roof- top to roof- top of any height.

         14                 This model has been readily accepted

         15  by the Oil Refining Industry.  There is an insert in

         16  the Baker Safety Brochure that you have been given

         17  that provides pertinent information on a few of the

         18  Oil Refineries that have had the - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Mr. Baker, I

         20  am going to ask you to start the video, because we

         21  are running out of time.  We have other presenters.

         22  And as the video is going, you can give this

         23  information.

         24                 MR. BAKER:  Well I do hope you go

         25  through the rest of this, because there is pertinent
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          2  information in regards to having these.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have it

          4  and we can distribute it.  Would you please start

          5  the video?

          6                 MR. BAKER:  We will show the video

          7  and take your questions.

          8                 (Video shown).

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I mean good.

         10    Thank you, Mr. Baker.  We are going to take the

         11  next presenter and then we will have questions for

         12  all the presenters after that.

         13                 There is one more, it is Mike

         14  Wintermute.

         15                 MR. BAKER:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Good you are

         17  right there.

         18                 MR. WINTERMUTE:  I will be brief.  I

         19  had a short talk presentation and then a very short

         20  video.

         21                 Thank you for having us and providing

         22  this opportunity.  My name is Mike Wintermute.  I

         23  represent Moserota, LTD., Israel.  This is the

         24  Spider Rescue System, it is a controlled, descent

         25  device.  Of course, these things are being looked at
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          2  and considered ever since skyscrapers.  Moserota

          3  took out the scandalous challenge a few years ago,

          4  and recognizing that there is a need for safe and

          5  reliable system, easy to operate, always available,

          6  no power required.  Assures quick evacuation that

          7  does not endanger people.  It can easily work in

          8  buildings up to 100 floors, and able to evacuate

          9  people away as much as 350 pounds.

         10                 Moserota is a company that has been

         11  in existence for over 30 years, and they are grouted

         12  in safety and security systems, and noted for their

         13  wired rope.

         14                 The results of their efforts, they

         15  actually bought a patent to the US, took it to

         16  Israel and refined the design, and came up with two

         17  configurations.  One is the Spider office on the

         18  left, which is designed so that multiple people can

         19  have cassettes with cable on it.

         20                 Using the same mechanism with

         21  slightly different configuration, what we call the

         22  Spider Home, which is designed for smaller groups of

         23  people, such as condo dweller families, or small

         24  offices.

         25                 It is easy to use, you just take it
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          2  out of the storage case, which you take it outside.

          3  Okay, now we are working, I am sorry.  So it comes

          4  in a case that stores and protects it from the

          5  elements.  It is easily removed.  You take out a

          6  harness, put on a harness, attach it to the steel

          7  cable, and exit to the nearest window or off the

          8  balcony, or whatever it might be.

          9                 I am not going to show that, to save

         10  some time. Benefits, it is easy to use, compact,

         11  easy to install.  It is very small, you can see it

         12  is 18 and one- half inches by 16.1, and 12.5 high.

         13  It does not rely on any power source.  Two people

         14  can go down simultaneously, and it is very

         15  affordable.

         16                 It is built to comply with EN341,

         17  which is European standard.  It took into account

         18  all the standards that relate to controlled descent

         19  devices and apparatus associated with it.  It is

         20  made on a heavy- duty base.  It can be attached to

         21  the floor or to the wall.  It has two braking

         22  systems, the primary system is a the hydraulic

         23  system which rotates continually and provides a

         24  constant release of the cable, dependent on the

         25  weight of the individual. And the second brake is if

                                                            126

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  for some reason somebody jumps onto the cable or

          3  whatever it might be and increases the weight, a

          4  second braking system automatically activates itself

          5  and holds the speed to eight feet per second.  So

          6  the basic descent speed is between three and six

          7  feet per second, depending on the weight of the

          8  individual from 65 to 350 pounds.

          9                 The whole system is designed to a

         10  10:1 safety factor.  That means if we have a 350-

         11  pound person, the testing is being done to 3,500

         12  pounds, so it has very good strength.

         13                 I am not going to talk about other

         14  systems here, but I just want to go down the line

         15  very quickly.  Descent speed is moderate and safe.

         16  Its required storage space is very small.  Its

         17  rescue height can be adapted to any building.  It is

         18  very easy to install it, even though we train and

         19  require certified installers. The window ledge

         20  requirements is egress methods are very, very

         21  flexible.

         22                 I am not going to talk about those,

         23  but I will just tell you that in small quantities,

         24  one unit will cost approximately $1,500.  It is

         25  modular design so it is intended for multiple
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          2  installation in a building.  Perhaps apartment

          3  dwellers make their own decisions, companies leasing

          4  space in a high- rise may make a decision to

          5  implement this for their personnel.  And so we will

          6  call it the modular system that is cost- effective.

          7                 I will not spend a lot of time with

          8  Moserota, they are a well- established company.

          9  They are an IS 9000 Company in design and

         10  production, and have been so for many years.  They

         11  have a lot of good customers.

         12                 And Spider, in summary, is safe and

         13  reliable.  This is the result, we are now testing

         14  it, finishing testing it within days in Israel

         15  against all of the standards that we have applied to

         16  it.  It is easy to operate it, it is easy to install

         17  it, it is affordable, compact, always available, no

         18  power required.  It ensures quick evacuation, it

         19  does not endanger people using it. Easily able to

         20  cope with high buildings, and can handle people up

         21  to 350 pounds, and two people can go together.

         22                 Now I want to find the video, thank

         23  you, Sir.  In the hand- out that I gave you, there

         24  is a summary sheet, there are some talking points

         25  that has a lot more to say than I am going to do
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          2  right now.  It talks about maintenance, there is no

          3  maintenance requirement, but we require annual

          4  inspection and that type of thing.  And I will talk

          5  during the video a little bit.

          6                 This was done in Tel Aviv about a

          7  year and a half ago.  And you know, you wonder about

          8  the fear factor issue, because you are high, and you

          9  are going to go over the edge of the building.  But

         10  I guess, you know, in thinking about this, it seems

         11  to me that today in this world there are scarier

         12  things to do in amusement parks than this.

         13                 She comes down at a rate of speed at

         14  about the rate of a slow walk.  She can manage her

         15  descent and move herself around obstacles like

         16  flagpoles.  When she comes to a roof, there is no

         17  fly wheel attached, so the cable does not continue

         18  to spill out. When she steps on the ledge and

         19  removes the weight, the cable stops, she walks over

         20  to the edge and then it continues, then she lands at

         21  a very comfortable speed.

         22                 Now this is designed, this is the

         23  home unit, it is designed to be reeled back up by

         24  hand, or using a power drill or something like that,

         25  no hard power.  You pull back up in a few seconds
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          2  and use it again, if you had more people and family

          3  than you could do it in one trip.

          4                 The harness is an OSHA- approved

          5  harness that is approved for use in just exactly in

          6  this type of rescue.  See he is moving himself

          7  about, and he manages his descent comfortably.

          8                 And that is really the end of the

          9  video, and I thank you for your time, and I will be

         10  pleased to answer any questions.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well

         12  thank you very much.  I am going to call the next

         13  presenter, Mr. Herstik Arie, from S.I.L.

         14  Technologies, LTD.  Thank you.

         15                 MR. ARIE:  Good afternoon, thank you

         16  for the chance to present the MSH 2000 Rescue

         17  System.  I am from Israel, and I was an ex- soldier

         18  for the Government of Israel.  And following the

         19  bombing in the 1993 in the World Trade Center here,

         20  we established a case, and I was assigned to find

         21  solutions for such a case.  And what was difficult

         22  in this moment was that the bomb was in the

         23  basement, and all the electrical system came down,

         24  and there was also a great risk for the blocking of

         25  the staircases.
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          2                 So I have worked for many, many years

          3  to develop a system, a solution for the high- rise

          4  building, and I reached one system, which I am going

          5  to present to you, and I will make it very short.  I

          6  have a big lecture, but since everybody told, made

          7  all that vocation for the system, I will elaborate

          8  only one point, which I did not hear from anybody

          9  here, which our conclusion is that the most

         10  important point is in past reaction to the fire.

         11                 And the past reaction depends on the

         12  speed that you can deliver upstairs the

         13  firefighters, the command, and the gear to control

         14  the fire, to evacuate the people, and to control the

         15  incident.  And this system that I am going to

         16  present over here is mainly important because it

         17  gives the answer for innovating the firefighters up,

         18  the gear up, and all the equipment and enables

         19  better control of the incident.

         20                 Now I will present a video, and

         21  answer questions.

         22                 (Video shown).

         23                 That is a very short presentation of

         24  the system.  I just want to add that the system is

         25  working, already tested by the General Standard and
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          2  good approval of TUV for safety.  And it is already

          3  patented.  And I want to show you, because this is a

          4  question that everybody asks, what is the beam that

          5  we are talking about, because this is a fixed

          6  composite that we are going to attach to the

          7  building.  And this is a cross section of the beam

          8  that is attached to the building like this.  These

          9  are all the stories.

         10                 The track that you see, we take a

         11  City like New York, we need only five tracks, and

         12  the only question is to attach beams like this to

         13  the buildings.  And the price is very, very cheap,

         14  when we are talking about $1,000 per floor.

         15                 About the tracks, the tracks are

         16  $300,000, but this is a legible cost because for the

         17  complete City it needs about five, six tracks, this

         18  is about one and a half, two million dollars.  And

         19  with this system, you can solve the problems of all

         20  building, existing buildings, and also new

         21  buildings.  We can give many, many solutions to the

         22  quality points and to absorb the problem of making

         23  the building ugly, and we have also double ups and

         24  solutions, also hide the beam that nobody can see.

         25                 This is very short, of course, I can
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          2  elaborate, but there is no time, I will finish it.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

          5  you very much. What we are going to do, of course,

          6  we only have two Council members left, but we are

          7  going to take questions.  So somehow if we could get

          8  one person, Mr. Baker, Mr. Shimshoni, Mr. Godwin,

          9  who did I forget, somebody, and Mr. Mike Wintermute,

         10  I never did pronounce your name correctly.  So if we

         11  can kind of get you all there, Israel, if you would

         12  work that out for us?  Can we close up, okay, good.

         13                 Council Member Brewer is our

         14  questionnaire.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         16  very much, Madam Chair.  And I also appreciate the

         17  effort that you all have put into research and

         18  design, and thinking about this very challenging

         19  issue.

         20                 I just have a few questions.

         21  Obviously, one of our biggest challenges, I think,

         22  as more of us age and continue working, and as more

         23  workers are able to work because of physically

         24  challenged, thanks to the ADA legislation can get

         25  into buildings. You know that is a very good thing.
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          2  Then, of course, the challenge for those of us in

          3  policy- making positions is to make sure that the

          4  so- called temporarily, abled body and the

          5  physically challenged can get out of a building.

          6  And that is what we saw during the World Center was

          7  a big problem.

          8                 We have a memo here from Alexander

          9  Wood, who is a wonderful advocate for the disabled

         10  in our City stating what we already know is that

         11  many people who are physically challenged did not

         12  get out of the World Trade Center.

         13                 So one of my questions is, for

         14  whomever, what size building, what height do you

         15  recommend?  I mean, obviously, if it is a small

         16  building, it would not be necessary.  And the other

         17  question I have is, what kinds of disasters would

         18  your project be able to address?  I mean from my

         19  layperson's view, it looked like in some cases, if

         20  the entire building collapsed, unfortunately, we

         21  have some experience with that, that I do not know

         22  that even your project would be able to bring people

         23  out of the building.  So it is what size building,

         24  and what kind of disaster are you strategizing for?

         25                 MR. BAKER:  In a case like the World
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          2  Trade Center, unless I am mistaken, there was about

          3  an hour and 45 minutes before they collapsed.  And

          4  what could have been done in that hour and 45

          5  minutes would have amazed everybody.  And our

          6  device, we use anywhere, when you run out of hook

          7  and ladders, that is where we come in, and we are

          8  proud of that fact.

          9                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Just to add, in terms

         10  of the kind of disaster, it is any time that the

         11  core of the building is not accessible and not

         12  negotiable by people.  And you can start, it is a

         13  question of using your imagination, it could be

         14  fire, it could be terrorist attack, it could be

         15  chemical attack, it could be a blackout.  We saw

         16  that, that a New York blackout, by the following

         17  morning, when all the granola bars were done and

         18  people wanted to start getting out, there was a real

         19  challenge getting up there, getting emergency

         20  responders up there and carrying people down.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But what size

         22  building do you recommend that your device be

         23  applicable to?

         24                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Well it is a matter

         25  of degree, but surely when the hook and ladders run
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          2  out.  It is probably anything above a 12- story, if

          3  you are up there, you are stuck, unless there is

          4  some other way out.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  The

          6  other question I had was in some cases, some of the

          7  devices, obviously, they are not expensive, do not

          8  require a lot of maintenance.  But one of the

          9  questions I have is, obviously, all in our high-

         10  rises we have elevators.  And is there some way that

         11  both your device and an elevator could be

         12  compatible?  In other words, so there would be less

         13  cost to the person building the building.  Is it

         14  something that could be used, or is it only possible

         15  to be used during a disaster, is there a secondary

         16  use that is possible?

         17                 MR. ARIE:  I would like to make it

         18  clear that according to the safety standards, when

         19  it is an emergency, evacuation system, I know it is

         20  in Europe, you cannot use it usually continuously.

         21  So there is no way to interact between these two

         22  systems.

         23                 MR. WINTERMUTE:  I would just like to

         24  say that our product, the Spider is designed for

         25  unique application.  Specific applications can be
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          2  terror to those. You mentioned the issue of

          3  handicapped or partially disabled people, physical

          4  limitations.  We had a series of accessories that we

          5  are looking at, for instance, the ability to

          6  actually use the wheelchair that the person is on as

          7  part of the harness for the descent.  And for

          8  stretcher born people, and things like that.

          9                 That is an evaluation, but we are

         10  specifically addressing that issue.  And we can work

         11  at any floor level.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  How many

         13  people could the Spider, for instance, take out in

         14  any given situation?

         15                 MR. WINTERMUTE:  We have a study that

         16  we did that, said if you had 100 people that you

         17  wanted to evacuate in an office situation, using the

         18  office configuration, you could use four base units,

         19  and I think the number is 68 of the cassettes.

         20  Because as long as it is people together that weighs

         21  less than 350 pounds, more than one person could

         22  come down.  I forget the exact height, don't hold me

         23  to it, I have to go look at the literature, but it

         24  was 30 minutes to evacuate 100 people in that

         25  situation.
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          2                 MR. GODWIN:  Yes, in answer to the

          3  first part of your question, if there was a surface

          4  of the World Trade Center that was still intact then

          5  everyone would have got out at the top. I do not

          6  know if there was a complete surface, but as long as

          7  there was one surface then the people would have got

          8  out.

          9                 As far as less enabled people, the

         10  unit is quite capable of having the wheelchair

         11  attachment and can take up to, at least, 240

         12  kilograms of dead weight and at the same controlled

         13  speed.  That is important that the speeds,

         14  irrespective of weight, are the same, which are not

         15  generally true of mechanical systems or anything

         16  like that.  They vary somewhat.

         17                 What was your last point?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  No, that was

         19  fine, it was the size of the building, which has

         20  been answered, and kinds of disasters, which you

         21  answered, I think.

         22                 MR. GODWIN:  Well as I say, mainly

         23  the psychological side of having your own means

         24  there, available to you, to get out. And always

         25  available for working.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  The Spider

          3  had in its literature, safety factor 10:1, what does

          4  that mean?  Just out of curiosity.

          5                 MR. WINTERMUTE:  It is designed to be

          6  used by people weighing or combinations of people

          7  weighing 350 pounds.  It is designed to and tested

          8  at 3,500 pounds.  That is exactly what it means.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Good

         10  afternoon, gentlemen. I want to thank you all for

         11  coming.  I was intrigued by your presentation.  The

         12  gentleman from the UK, you said that a handicapped

         13  attachment would be available for, so that someone

         14  with a wheelchair could roll right on this?

         15                 MR. GODWIN:  No, the energy unit

         16  remains the same. The wheelchair has the adapter on

         17  it to take it as a wheelchair complete.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And the

         19  gentleman from MSH 2000, is that in actual use

         20  somewhere?

         21                 MR. ARIE:  It is now, the first

         22  project is now in the process of definition and

         23  erection in the Israel Diamond Bus together with the

         24  Israel Home Port Command and the Fire Commissioner,

         25  this is a combined project, which will be working in
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          2  three months.  And what you have seen in the movie

          3  is the prototype working, testing, and everything.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And the

          5  gentleman from Escape, you said that your

          6  installation will be up and running by the end of

          7  this year?

          8                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Yes, the information

          9  is the first operation installation should be

         10  beginning in the next three to four weeks.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And what are

         12  those compartments made of?

         13                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  Compartments are made

         14  of fabrics, so that they can fold.  Fabric is very

         15  sturdy, it is fireproof, and between the layers of

         16  fabric, there is a layer of kevlar (phonetic) which

         17  gives it a firmness quality as well.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So people are

         19  standing on kevlar.

         20                 MR. SHIMSHONI:  No, they are standing

         21  on metal.  The sizes of the compartments are

         22  basically a combination of fireproof fabric and

         23  kevlar.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  And

         25  the gentleman from the, Mr. Baker, you said, where
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          2  is this installed, they are in the airport towers?

          3                 MR. BAKER:  We had 32 Air Traffic

          4  Control Towers that we had done.  Our first one was

          5  in Phoenix, Arizona.  We have been to the Air Base

          6  in Japan, Ramstein, Germany.  We just, last year,

          7  finished Lichen Youth in London, England.  We did

          8  Sotto Canto (phonetic), Honduras in Central America,

          9  and next week we will be in Salt Lake City, Utah

         10  doing a second tower for the Air Force at the Air

         11  Force Base.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So you are

         13  primarily in military?

         14                 MR. BAKER:  Well military or oil, all

         15  refineries love our product.  And in the past, they

         16  had no way out in an emergency.  And when they have

         17  an emergency in an oil refinery, it is generally

         18  disastrous, the results are generally not too good.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And just a

         20  question for the panel, have you gotten the sense

         21  that the Port Authority was considering an

         22  evacuation system in their World Trade Center

         23  design?

         24                 MR. BAKER:  Not that I know of.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  All right.
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          2  Well again, I want to thank you all for coming.  It

          3  was an intriguing afternoon. Thank you, Madam Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

          5  all very much. Again, particularly those of you that

          6  came from afar, and we appreciate all your

          7  testimony.  Thank you.

          8                 MR. BAKER:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We still

         10  have a couple of folks, David De Vries, Ted Price,

         11  Sally Regenhard, the three of you.

         12                 If you want to, you could remove one

         13  of those chairs, Israel.

         14                 I know I do not have to ask you to be

         15  brief.

         16                 MR. DE VRIES:  Good afternoon, Madam

         17  Chairperson and Committee members.  Thank you for

         18  inviting the interested public to participate in

         19  this hearing.  My name is David De Vries.  I am a

         20  Fire Protection Engineer.  I am President of my own

         21  firm, Fire Tech Engineering, Inc., based in the

         22  Chicago suburb of Evanston, Illinois.

         23                 I also serve as the Chairman of the

         24  National Fire Protection Association's Technical

         25  Committee on means of Egress, and I am on the Cook
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          2  County Commission investigating the 69 West,

          3  Washington Building fire where six people died last

          4  October in a smoke-filled stairwell.  I am pleased

          5  to be here today, and I am, in the interest of

          6  disclosure, I am here at the expense of Escape

          7  Rescue Systems, one of the earlier presenters.

          8                 I hope you have, or you will have

          9  shortly, my written presentation. I'm going to skip

         10  about half of it in the interest of time, and

         11  address this issue as an opportunity for the City

         12  Council of New York.

         13                 Historically, the development of

         14  Building and Safety Codes has been reactive.  That

         15  is, when a tragedy happens the typical response is

         16  to examine the code, address the specific issues of

         17  that tragedy, and then adopt new code requirements.

         18  This can result in a patchwork that has gaps,

         19  conflicts, or other problems.

         20                 We suggest that you consider another

         21  approach, a proactive one.  By using analytical

         22  tools to foresee building system failures, the

         23  Building Code can then be used to prevent the

         24  resulting tragedies.  Recognizing that in tall

         25  buildings, a single event, whether accidental or
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          2  deliberate, such as an explosion, fire, chemical

          3  release, or structural collapse, can compromise all

          4  avenues of vertical escape.  Provisions for external

          5  evacuation and access is not only desirable, but

          6  will be needed again in the future.  Supporting

          7  pilot programs and providing the code language that

          8  recognizes methods of external escape and access is

          9  a proactive approach that will add options for

         10  building owners and occupants that are not currently

         11  available.

         12                 New York City is in a unique position

         13  of being the first governmental body to specifically

         14  address this issue of innovative, external

         15  evacuation methods.  Other governmental entities and

         16  model code organizations will look to New York City

         17  and see what you have accomplished.  You have an

         18  opportunity to set a proactive direction that

         19  enhances building occupants' safety first by

         20  partnering with building owners and system

         21  innovators to launch pilot programs.

         22                 And second, by formally recognizing

         23  external evacuation in your Building Code and

         24  providing criteria for its safe and effective use.

         25                 We urge your favorable considerations
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          2  of these comments, and thank you for your attention

          3  today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          5  Sally.

          6                 MS. REGENHARD:  Hello, I am going to

          7  be very, very brief.  Sally Regenhard, founder and

          8  chairperson of the Skyscraper Safety Campaign, a

          9  project of parents and families of firefighters and

         10  World Trade Center victims.  We represent thousands

         11  of family members, professionals, academic people,

         12  and related people in the field of fire safety.

         13                 I am here today to make five short

         14  points:

         15                 1.  The membership and all the

         16  academic advisors, many of whom were on the World

         17  Trade Center Building Code Review Task Force,

         18  unanimously support the passage of Intro. 126- A.

         19  Thirteen of the 21 recommendations, and we look

         20  forward to the day when the other eight

         21  recommendations will also be passed for the safety

         22  and security of the public.

         23                 2.  These various Escape Systems,

         24  while the Skyscraper Safety Campaign does not

         25  endorse any specific product or practice, we do
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          2  support research and development of these

          3  alternative systems.

          4                 And I want to compliment your

          5  Committee for bringing these systems and these

          6  different people to the forefront.  We must learn

          7  how to evacuate people from existing buildings.  And

          8  I thank you very much for that.  Keep up the good

          9  work, keep up with the research.

         10                 3.  The emergency lighting.  I really

         11  have to say that thank God, I am also not an

         12  engineer, but I do want to say we certainly need

         13  lighting from electricity.  We need a backup,

         14  battery type of things, when that goes out.  And

         15  then you need a third thing, we need these either,

         16  some type of phosphorescent lighting.  We do need

         17  what Mr. Jackson said, a fail- safe system. When one

         18  thing goes, we need backup after backup.  I would

         19  like to see all three different methods, or more

         20  than that utilized in the building.  We cannot put

         21  our eggs into one basket, as we saw from 9/11.

         22                 4.  While I really enjoy the man from

         23  RDNY and the person who is the owner of the Empire

         24  State Building speak, he gave, you know, a very good

         25  presentation.  I have to say, I really believe that
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          2  15 years is long enough to put retrofit sprinklers

          3  into these buildings.  And he is true, the World

          4  Trade Center was probably the most dangerous

          5  building in the world, and the Empire State Building

          6  is probably the safest building in the world.

          7  However, it still needs to have sprinklers for

          8  redundancy, 15 years is long enough.  Please pass

          9  that part.

         10                 Finally, I just wanted to say that,

         11  you know, Frank Lombardi from the Port Authority,

         12  you know, spoke and made several statements.

         13  Briefly, I really do want to say that Memorandums of

         14  Understanding are not worth the paper they are

         15  written on.  They are not legal documents.  A

         16  Memorandum of Understanding is like a kiss and a

         17  promise.

         18                 Secondly, I would like to say that if

         19  the Port Authority goes by "its own codes," I would

         20  like the Port Authority to provide a copy of "its

         21  own codes" to New York City Department of Buildings

         22  and to your fine Committee for you to review,

         23  compare, and contrast.

         24                 3.  I would like to say, regarding

         25  this truss passage and truss construction.  The
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          2  representative from that industry really made a very

          3  telling point, and that was that while he has one

          4  type of established truss construction, the truss

          5  construction in the World Trade Center was not the

          6  standard truss construction.  It was an invention

          7  that the Port Authority created, and he feels that

          8  he is being, you know, unfairly compromised by that.

          9    I have to say that I am against the use of truss

         10  construction, however, his point illustrates the

         11  fact that the Port Authority says that they not only

         12  meet, but they exceed New York City Codes.  The fact

         13  is, it is a matter of public record, regarding the

         14  spray- on fireproofing on the truss construction of

         15  the World Trade Center, there is no evidence that

         16  any fire testing was ever done on that innovative,

         17  spray- on fireproofing of those trusses.  It is a

         18  matter of public record, it is in the archives of

         19  the New York Times.  The NIST investigation reported

         20  that in one of their meetings.

         21                 Consequently, we have people who say

         22  they meet and exceed, there are example after

         23  example of clear violations that these people did

         24  not meet and exceed the Code.  I will end my

         25  comments by saying, I work for the day when the new
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          2  World Trade Center development will be under the

          3  legal jurisdiction of the New York City Building and

          4  Fire Department.  And as Mr. Fidler said, if indeed,

          5  they do meet and exceed the Code, why would they

          6  object to being under the legal jurisdiction?

          7                 Finally, finally, my last comment

          8  before closing is, Mr. Lombardi stated that the

          9  Buildings Department, the Fire Department is

         10  welcomed to come in, and they are welcome to write

         11  up things.  That is really true.  However, whatever

         12  they find, whatever they write up, the Port

         13  Authority has no legal obligation to do anything

         14  about it.  We must change it for public safety, for

         15  confidence, so the City can rise again, and so no

         16  one, ever again, will ever needlessly die in

         17  buildings that were not safe enough for human

         18  inhabitation.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         21  Sally, as always, we appreciate your input.

         22                 MR. PRICE:  Madam Chair, members of

         23  the Council, let me be very brief.  I represent,

         24  actually, a firm that experienced evacuation on 9/11

         25  first- hand.  Every single employee of Lehman

                                                            149

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Brothers was displaced on 9/11.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Could you

          4  just state your name?

          5                 MR. PRICE:  My name is Ted Price, I

          6  am the Director of Global Security at Lehman

          7  Brothers.

          8                 What happened on that day, we had

          9  over 600 people in the World Trade Center.  Thank

         10  God we only lost one of our employees, and the rest

         11  of our 6,000 employees were across the street in One

         12  World Phi and Three World Phi, every single employee

         13  was evacuated on that day.

         14                 And so the problem is a real problem,

         15  and I represent, in many ways, you have heard the

         16  solution providers, I represent the client.  And the

         17  problem from my perspective is the anxiety that

         18  employees face every day in today's environment of

         19  going into a high- rise building in the City.  And

         20  we hear about it, and so what we did in taking a

         21  look at solving this problem was first, we did task

         22  forcing around, studies around our stairwells.

         23                 How can we increase the ambient

         24  light?  What can we do about the redundancy to make

         25  announcements in the stairwells? How, in fact, can
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          2  we increase the flow of people out of a building?

          3                 Having studied that problem, and then

          4  ordered and actually done the work around how many

          5  handicapped people we had in our building, we

          6  ordered the type of safety equipment that we could

          7  use in a stairwell with a handicapped person.  And

          8  those are present in all of our three buildings in

          9  Manhattan today.

         10                 Next, we looked at the daunting

         11  problem that you are facing today, and that is,

         12  external evacuation.  Non- trivial, expensive,

         13  costly, depends on whether you own the building,

         14  depends whether or not you are retrofitting a

         15  building.  We have actually done engineering studies

         16  with two of the presenters today, and we have a good

         17  deal of experience.

         18                 The problems are multiple.  The

         19  principal problem could be cost.  We looked at, for

         20  instance, and ruled out very quickly, external

         21  staircases.  We looked at pedestrian bridges, which

         22  were basically, also, too costly.

         23                 Then we narrowed it down, and we

         24  started to look at independent systems, parachutes,

         25  much too costly in terms of danger.
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          2                 We looked at these hoist systems that

          3  were, one of them that was presented today, and

          4  there are some worries, and my concern about the

          5  number of cables that would be involved in that

          6  hoist system, how many cables would be off your

          7  building, how fast you could get, you know, the

          8  cable rewound.  And also, it is a much more daunting

          9  experience on a 30- story building to have an

         10  individual actually harnessed in a safety device and

         11  essentially go over the side of the building.

         12                 In a word, what we are looking for is

         13  an external egress system that moves the flow of

         14  occupants from the top floors of a 30- plus- story

         15  building.  Ideally, we want a cost- effective system

         16  with a small number of building parts, modest power

         17  requirements that could be permanently mounted and

         18  maintained in all- weather conditions.  Importantly,

         19  we require a system that meets the stringent

         20  criteria of our building engineers, the City's

         21  authorities, and the Fire Department.

         22                 We have not found a solution.  We

         23  have looked for two years, we are still open, we are

         24  still talking to several of the presenters that

         25  presented today.  Our employees care, they are very
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          2  concerned about how to get off the tallest floors of

          3  our building.  It could be a terrorist incident, but

          4  it could be a fire or an internal bomb that

          5  essentially disables and makes the stairwells

          6  unusable.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          9  Council Member Comrie.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Mr. Price, I

         11  want to thank you, you are quite illuminating.

         12  Could you inform the Council when you have selected

         13  or focused on a system that you think would meet

         14  those requirements that you just espoused?

         15                 MR. PRICE:  We will, indeed.  As a

         16  matter of fact, several of these systems actually,

         17  probably, have got to come before the Council or in

         18  front of the City's authorities in terms of, for

         19  instance, the Baker System involves a cable.  The

         20  cable has to cross to another roof- top or to the

         21  street.  It has got to be permanently mounted.  And

         22  basically, cables, it looks simple, but in terms of

         23  actually, the deployment of that system is not

         24  simple.

         25                 You have to have a certain degree of,
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          2  in terms of the Baker Chute point of view.  If you

          3  drop it off the side of a building, you actually

          4  have to pull it away from the building. Non- trivial

          5  when you look at the weight of what the Baker Chute

          6  is, as it is on the ground dead weight that you

          7  would have to pull away from a building.  In that

          8  particular instance, you would not need a cable.

          9  But if you were to cross to another roof- top, you

         10  would need a cable.

         11                 In many of these systems, escape

         12  systems as well, you would actually have to have the

         13  full authority of the City to essentially implement

         14  this system.  But we are concerned, we got that top

         15  level guidance of our firm to say, keep on looking,

         16  let's see if we can find a system that will work in

         17  extremist.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you.

         19  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I have a

         21  question, are a lot of the big firms that have big

         22  buildings in the City coordinating, collaborating,

         23  talking about this, how is the discussion?

         24  Obviously, you are very knowledgeable, you have a

         25  background that lends itself.  But I was just
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          2  wondering if the topic that is taking place amongst

          3  other firms, or is it just, are you taking the lead

          4  from Lehman?

          5                 MR. PRICE:  Well in many ways it is

          6  our personal lead simply because of the anxiety that

          7  the employees have, actually having had that

          8  experience.  If you work on a daily basis with

          9  people who are on the 31st floor, and the 30th

         10  floor, and the 29th floor, in essence, when you have

         11  got a fire alarm activation, people are actually

         12  looking to evacuate the building almost immediately.

         13    I mean, this is a principle problem for us.

         14  Indeed, if we have any incident external to our

         15  building, we have an extraordinary problem around

         16  education of how we would convince people to stay in

         17  place.  Because sheltering in place could save

         18  people's lives, rather than going out into the

         19  chaos, stay in the building.

         20                 However, I think you will find, and

         21  this is something that we do share with our other

         22  corporate security directors in a lot of high- rise

         23  buildings has said, employees are probably going to

         24  evacuate as quickly as possible, if the stairwells

         25  are available.
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          2                 Now, have we talked to some of our

          3  other colleagues about external systems?  Yes, but

          4  they are all looking for proof of concept.  Frankly,

          5  with the people that you have talked with today, the

          6  only system that is actually deployed is the Baker

          7  System.  And it is deployed off of Air Traffic

          8  Control Towers.

          9                 Indeed, interestingly, my security

         10  director in Tokyo, because Lehman is New York,

         11  London, Tokyo, like a lot of other banks, and in

         12  essence, my security director in Tokyo comes out of

         13  the Air Force and actually has been in a Baker

         14  Chute.  And as he said to me, it is a daunting

         15  experience first time in the Chute.  But it is

         16  basically not very difficult, and really will serve

         17  your purpose say for 15 stories.

         18                 Now can we make it work at 30

         19  stories, there are some real challenges.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         23  gentlemen and lady, thank you very much.

         24                 We have Larry Blinn, these are the

         25  last folks to testify.  Lawrence Shapiro, Julie
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          2  Greenberg.  Again, you are the last three, please, I

          3  ask you to be brief.  We still have another matter

          4  on.

          5                 MS. GREENBERG:  Good afternoon, thank

          6  you so much for your time and consideration.  My

          7  name is Julie Greenberg.  I am here from Cassara

          8  Consulting.  I am actually reading some testimony

          9  that is being submitted by Easter Seals.  We are

         10  very appreciative of the opportunity to provide

         11  testimony and comment on the External Rescue System,

         12  and it is currently under development by Escape

         13  Rescue Systems.

         14                 It gives us great hope to learn that

         15  the New York City Council's Committee on Housing and

         16  Buildings will be examining alternate means of

         17  egress from high- rise buildings.  Easter Seals is

         18  the United States' oldest and non- profit

         19  organization, serving both children and adults with

         20  all types of disabilities.

         21                 As a result of the tragedy for

         22  September 11th, Easter Seals has spearheaded a

         23  national education initiative called, "Safety First:

         24    Working Together for Safe Communities," to

         25  emphasize the need for evacuation planning that
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          2  leaves no one behind.  We were especially pleased to

          3  learn the concept for external building evacuation

          4  systems, specifically addresses escape movement of

          5  people with disabilities.

          6                 Based upon discussions with

          7  representatives of Escape, we were made aware of

          8  several proposals that are pending before the

          9  National Fire Protection Association, Means of

         10  Egress Committee, and other NFPA committees

         11  concerning alternate means of egress and escape from

         12  buildings.

         13                 As the founder of the effort to

         14  standardized building accessibility in the 1960s,

         15  and the first Secretariat for the ANFIA- 117

         16  Committee, Easter Seals has promoted a universal

         17  design concept and construction that facilitate use

         18  of buildings for the broadest range of people,

         19  including those who use mobility aids and devices.

         20  As you can imagine, many people with even moderate

         21  mobility impairments, convert, traverse stairs only

         22  with difficulty, and often, not at all.  Across the

         23  country, and particularly in cities with high- rise

         24  buildings, safety and evacuation procedures are more

         25  important than ever, especially for the more than 54
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          2  million people in the US, with a disability.

          3                 Most safety and emergency plans,

          4  however, do not address specific needs of people

          5  with disabilities, older adults, those who have an

          6  injury or illness, or others who may be pregnant.

          7  Escape's concept provides a solution to this problem

          8  in many buildings, including existing ones, but

          9  needs to achieve a level of recognition, acceptance,

         10  in the Fire Safety and Building Safety communities

         11  before there is likely to move ahead to actual

         12  installations.

         13                 Therefore, we support a critical

         14  review of current concepts, and look forward to the

         15  findings of the Council's Committee on Housing and

         16  Buildings on External Building Evacuation System,

         17  and alternate escape devices and systems with design

         18  intended for us by disabled persons.  We will follow

         19  closely the result of today's Committee hearing, and

         20  their efforts in seeking the best solutions to

         21  problems of safe egress from buildings that leaves

         22  no one behind.

         23                 And it is signed from Christine

         24  McMahon, the Chief Operating Officer of Easter

         25  Seals.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. SHAPIRO:  Madam Chairwoman

          5  Provenzano and esteemed members of the Committee, my

          6  name is Lawrence Shapiro.  I am a third generation

          7  Professional Engineer, a partner in the firm of

          8  Howard I. Shapiro and Associates.  Our practice is

          9  centered on means and methods of construction,

         10  predominantly in New York City. Design of numerous

         11  crane, derrick, hoist, construction elevator, and

         12  scaffold installations on construction sites

         13  throughout the City come out of our office.  You see

         14  our work every day without knowing its authorship.

         15                 I have been asked to speak here by

         16  Escape Rescue Systems to offer my assessment for the

         17  practicality of their proposed system.  I am here as

         18  a professional and civic interest, not compensated,

         19  and do not expect to benefit from the commercial

         20  introduction of this company's products.  I am a

         21  nuts and bolts practitioner with little patience for

         22  chimerical schemes.

         23                 My professional expertise gives me a

         24  practical view of several aspects of the proposed

         25  system.  In particular, its structural mounting on a
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          2  building roof is similar to a derrick, its

          3  mechanical workings resemble a crane, and its

          4  functionality has parallels to the operations of a

          5  construction elevator.

          6                 On the basis of its specifications, I

          7  have formed a general impression of the proposed

          8  system:  I believe that this equipment could work as

          9  advertised.  Of course, saying that it could work is

         10  not the same as saying that it will, nor can I speak

         11  with authority about economics or marketability, but

         12  on a technical level, the concept is practicable.

         13                 The weight of the equipment on the

         14  roof is similar to the loading imposed by a derrick.

         15    Having engineered derrick installations to

         16  numerous new and existing buildings, I can say with

         17  authority that most modern major buildings can be

         18  made to accommodate the design loads.

         19                 Except for the accordion- like

         20  cabins, components are comparable to those that are

         21  used commonly for other types of hoisting equipment.

         22    This is not new technology, just an adaptation of

         23  tried- and- true equipment to a new usage.

         24                 Deployment to the floors is not

         25  fundamentally different from methods that are in
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          2  current use for elevators for high- rise

          3  construction.  While new buildings could be readily

          4  designed to accommodate such systems, many, if not

          5  most, existing buildings could be fitted as well.

          6                 Existing regulations properly protect

          7  the public from brash ideas, but on occasion,

          8  something new comes along that warrants a chance to

          9  be proven.  With regard to building escape systems,

         10  I believe now is such an occasion.  We will never

         11  know how effectively these devices can work until

         12  they are installed on some real buildings.  Why not

         13  start in New York, the place that has the most

         14  potential to benefit?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. BLINN:  Good afternoon,

         17  Chairperson Provenzano and members of the Council.

         18  My name is Larry Blinn.  I am the Senior Vice-

         19  President and Principal Owner of Regional

         20  Scaffolding and Hoisting.  Our company specializes

         21  in complicated scaffolding jobs, specialty rigging

         22  jobs, temporary and permanent elevators throughout

         23  the tri- state area.

         24                 This is my esteemed colleague,

         25  sitting next to me, that has just said, Regional
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          2  Scaffolding and Hoisting sees a real need and

          3  benefit for the Escape Rescue System.  We have

          4  looked at all points of it.  We feel it is a

          5  wonderful idea, and we see no reason why it cannot

          6  be installed in any building in the tri- state area.

          7                 It is imperative for the City of New

          8  York to take a good look at this.  We believe it is

          9  an innovative system, and in our opinion, is a new

         10  lifeboat and escape rescue system.  We feel it

         11  should be employed, or at least looked into.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         13  very much.  Next, Intro. No. 57, in case you forgot.

         14  It is a local law to amend the Administrative Code

         15  of the City of New York in relation to emergency

         16  lighting and exit sign.  We have Stephen Kramer,

         17  Chief of Staff to Commissioner Lancaster from the

         18  Department of Buildings. Peter Cantillo, New York

         19  City Housing Authority, and Robert Podmore from the

         20  New York City Housing Authority.  Again, I thank

         21  everyone that attended the hearing today, and I am

         22  sorry that some of you had to stay so long.

         23                 Steve, if you want to start?

         24                 MR. KRAMER:  Good afternoon, almost

         25  good evening, Chair Provenzano, and members of the
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          2  Committee.  My name is Stephen Kramer, and I am the

          3  Chief of Staff for the Department of Buildings, and

          4  appearing on behalf of Patricia Lancaster, who is

          5  unavailable at this time.  On her behalf, I thank

          6  you for the opportunity to testify concerning Intro.

          7  257, regarding backup power for emergency lighting

          8  and exit signs.

          9                 Under the correct Code, beginning in

         10  1984, the exit lighting and exit signage for all new

         11  buildings were required to have backup power from

         12  batteries or emergency generators.  In that statute,

         13  Local Law 16 of '84, also required retroactive

         14  upgrades for certain groups of buildings.  These

         15  buildings included pre- 1984 office buildings,

         16  schools, and hotels, and all pre- 1984 high- rise

         17  mercantile, industrial, and institutional buildings.

         18    These retroactive requirements gave proprietors

         19  three options:  They could connect the exit lights

         20  and signs to battery packs; they could connect them

         21  to emergency generators; or they could connect them

         22  to special dedicated circuits.  The last option,

         23  connecting the exit lights and signs to dedicated

         24  circuits is less desirable. This is because

         25  connecting the lights or signs to dedicated circuits
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          2  still leaves them dependent upon an external source

          3  of power making them vulnerable in case of a

          4  blackout or other failure of power.  Intro. 257

          5  would eliminate the third option for the pre 1984

          6  buildings, requiring buildings that connected their

          7  emergency lights and exit markings to dedicated

          8  circuits to connect them to battery packs or

          9  generators, like post- 1984 buildings.  The bill

         10  would give owners until January 1st, 2007 to

         11  upgrade.

         12                 Local Law 16 of 1984 did not set

         13  forth retroactive requirements for apartment

         14  buildings or apartment hotels. Therefore, only

         15  apartment buildings built after 1984 required to

         16  have emergency backup power for exit lights and

         17  signs.

         18                 Intro. 257 requires that all

         19  residential high- rises, including the apartment

         20  buildings and apartment hotels install those

         21  emergency lights and exit signs backup by either

         22  battery packs or generators.  This means that even

         23  in the event of complete power outage the means of

         24  egress of these high- rise buildings will be

         25  visible.  The bill further requires that these
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          2  emergency backup installations occur on or before

          3  January 1st, 2007.

          4                 To ensure compliance, the bill also

          5  requires that the Fire Department conduct annual

          6  inspections.

          7                 The Department supports the overall

          8  intent, but cautions that when evaluating any new

          9  proposal it is important to weigh the proposal's

         10  benefits against the cost.  This is particularly

         11  true where, as here, and there may be other

         12  technological solutions that would achieve similar

         13  goals.

         14                 In addition, we would like to make

         15  two minor comments concerning the bill, which are

         16  technical and major.

         17                 First, a drafting comment:

         18  Subdivisions (d) of Sections 27- 382 and 27- 384

         19  only need to be applicable to J- 2 buildings and to

         20  J- 1 buildings that are residential hotels.  J- 1

         21  buildings that are not residential hotels are

         22  already covered in proposed subdivision (c) of both

         23  sections.

         24                 Second, Intro. 126- A, which we

         25  finished discussing just a while ago, contains a
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          2  requirement that is identical in effect to one of

          3  this bill's proposals, both require emergency backup

          4  for the high- rise buildings previously exempted

          5  from that requirement.  If Intro. 126- A is passed,

          6  this bill's corresponding section will be redundant

          7  and unnecessary.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. PODMORE:  Chairperson Provenzano,

         10  members of the Committee, good afternoon.  I am

         11  Robert Podmore, Deputy General Manager for

         12  Operations of the New York City Housing Authority.

         13  I am here to testify with regard to Intro. 257 and

         14  its potential impact on the Housing Authority.

         15  Joining me is Peter Cantillo --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Could you

         17  pull the mic a little closer to you?

         18                 MR. PODMORE:  Joining me is Peter

         19  Cantillo, Assistant Deputy General Manager for

         20  Operations.  NYCHA manages 345 developments

         21  throughout the five boroughs with a population

         22  exceeding 418,000 residents in 2,702 buildings.

         23                 The safety of our residents is of

         24  paramount concern to the Authority.  We have made it

         25  a priority to institute a full range of up- to- date
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          2  fire- safety, emergency procedures, and equipment in

          3  our buildings, from fire safety plan advisories in

          4  every apartment, self- closing doors, smoke alarms,

          5  and regular inspections to be sure these are in good

          6  working order.

          7                 Health and safety is also the highest

          8  priority of our capital program as we maintain and

          9  modernize our buildings, their elevators, plumbing,

         10  heating and electrical systems, fire standpipes,

         11  brickwork and roofs.

         12                 Intro. 257 would require all exit

         13  lighting and exit signs to be connected to a battery

         14  or emergency power source in all our buildings by

         15  January 1st, 2007.  For NYCHA that would mean six to

         16  twelve emergency lights on 44,188 floors, a minimum

         17  of 265,104 fixtures.  We estimate the cost of

         18  compliance at approximately $150 million.

         19                 As there will be no funding to meet

         20  the requirements of Intro. 257, difficult choices

         21  would have to be made between the demands of our

         22  maintenance and modernization program and the

         23  emergency lighting system.  We would need to stretch

         24  our limited capital resources and delay or eliminate

         25  other capital improvements.
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          2                 The size of NYCHA and the relatively

          3  short time period in which to meet these

          4  requirements would mean that NYCHA would have to

          5  assign a large portion of this undertaking to

          6  electrical contractors outside the Authority, which

          7  would contribute significantly to the cost.

          8                 The costs of upkeep and maintenance

          9  of an emergency lighting system at NYCHA

         10  developments also need to be factored in. The design

         11  and installation of the system would have to be

         12  resistant to thefts and vandalism.

         13                 As I said, NYCHA has an ongoing

         14  maintenance and modernization program.  Rather than

         15  a calendar period, NYCHA could meet the requirement

         16  of Intro. 257 more cost effectively in the course of

         17  our regular maintenance and modernization.  Rather

         18  than attempting to retrofit all our 2,702 buildings

         19  in a little over two year's time, we suggest it

         20  would be more economical and practical for NYCHA to

         21  install emergency lighting for exits and signs as

         22  part of projects already in progress.

         23                 There is no higher priority than

         24  safety at the Housing Authority.  The deportment of

         25  our employees and residents during last summer's
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          2  blackout was exemplary, as was the reaction of our

          3  employees and residents on 9/11.  In both

          4  emergencies, NYCHA was in the forefront of the

          5  City's response and recovery.

          6                 NYCHA stands ready to work with you.

          7  I am happy to answer any questions you may have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Councilwoman

          9  Brewer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         11  very much, and I appreciate your testimony.  These

         12  are some of our very best agencies, and I know the

         13  work you do, I think you hear me complimenting you

         14  all the time.

         15                 My question is, I know that Stephen

         16  Kramer talked about alternative technologies.  I do

         17  think that during the blackout we did hear,

         18  particularly on the West Side because we have a lot

         19  of tall buildings, even in well managed buildings,

         20  we heard people going up to try to find elderly

         21  relatives and the stairwells were dark.  And so the

         22  question is, what kinds of alternatives are less

         23  expensive, possibilities for the NYCHA building and

         24  non- NYCHA building might be possible?  Obviously if

         25  you are, you know, extremely vigilant, I suppose,

                                                            170

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  you would have already thought about some of these

          3  longer lasting opportunities in terms of lighting,

          4  but they are probably expensive.

          5                 So I am just wondering, we all

          6  realize that there is a problem, meaning that at

          7  some point the blackout, or other kinds of incidents

          8  are going to take place, and people will be trying

          9  to find relatives and friends and get home and so

         10  on.  And I think we need to think of a way of

         11  addressing it, and the new technology may allow us

         12  to do it more efficiently.

         13                 MR. PODMORE:  We, first of all, I

         14  just want to say that in the blackout last summer,

         15  it was an extended blackout.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes.

         17                 MR. PODMORE:  That we really have not

         18  had to deal with in the course of many years.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I understand.

         20                 MR. PODMORE:  We attempted to deal

         21  with that through human resources as much as we

         22  could.  Putting people in the buildings with

         23  flashlights.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  NYCHA

         25  actually might be better suited for that than other
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          2  buildings because you have a staff there.  Whereas,

          3  other buildings are harder to find, would be my

          4  guess.

          5                 MR. PODMORE:  We have an Emergency

          6  Service Department that works 24 hours, seven days a

          7  week.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

          9                 MR. PODMORE:  So again, we may have

         10  resources that others may not have.

         11                 The generators, the backup generators

         12  would be very, very expensive to try to have in over

         13  2,700 buildings, and require major rewiring for

         14  emergency fixtures to be tied for that.

         15                 The scenario we laid out here in

         16  costs are really based on battery backup.  But they

         17  would only give you a few hours, at best, of

         18  emergency lighting.  So these are really good for

         19  evacuation procedures, but they would not really

         20  extend for a longer electrical outage.

         21                 Again, we think that, again, we

         22  talked, we heard earlier about the photoluminescence

         23  and the electroluminescence, and some of these

         24  things may be beneficial once they are looked into.

         25  And we defer to the DOB, on which would be the best
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          2  to use. There are some benefits to having emergency

          3  lighting and backup lighting.  They are limited

          4  residential space, and residential buildings are a

          5  little bit different than commercial buildings.

          6                 In commercial buildings you easily,

          7  as long as it is determined evacuation is

          8  appropriate, it is done quickly, and people return

          9  to their residence, of which they would be returning

         10  to our buildings.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

         12                 MR. PODMORE:  So there was a little

         13  bit of a difference.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  There is a

         15  difference.  I just think that it is in all of our

         16  best interest to use our limited resources for the

         17  most benefit, and we are willing to do that.  I just

         18  think that we should all be cautious as to what we

         19  choose would be the best way to go.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I should know

         21  this, what is in your stairwells now for the

         22  evacuation, in terms of lighting? What is it?  It is

         23  all regular electrical.

         24                 MR. PODMORE:  Yes, it has fluorescent

         25  lights.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And the exit

          3  sign as well as the stairwell lighting, I assume.

          4                 MR. PODMORE:  They are exit lights.

          5  I know on the lower floors, I am not sure if that

          6  goes all the way up.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  The exit

          8  signs would be on the lower floors.

          9                 MR. PODMORE:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes, and then

         11  otherwise --

         12                 MR. PODMORE:  The illuminated ones.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: - -  you use

         14  stairwell lighting.

         15                 MR. PODMORE:  And the signs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  The signs.

         17                 MR. PODMORE:  Right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  Mr.

         19  Kramer, in terms of residential, because I know you

         20  were talking about commercial earlier, are there

         21  some lower costs or alternative?

         22                 MR. KRAMER:  The only one that has

         23  been suggested, and I really do not know its

         24  capability in the Housing Authority type of

         25  situation, but it would be, perhaps,
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          2  photoluminescence, which could be, perhaps,

          3  feasible.  Where you do a lot of painting, there are

          4  classes may not last as long, but on the other hand,

          5  if you are using strips in areas where there isn't

          6  paint, it might be a viable option.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  And

          8  this is my ignorance, again, we did get quite a few

          9  calls for, not for NYCHA, but for other buildings

         10  during the extended blackout.  Although, people did

         11  show up as early as possible in order to see aging

         12  relatives.  Each stairwell is supposed to have what

         13  currently, in terms of the Buildings Department

         14  Code?

         15                 MR. KRAMER:  I believe that in

         16  residential buildings, I believe that it is a

         17  battery pack, and the battery packs, as I think we

         18  have all learned, I think it is a four- hour rated

         19  minimum.  And so, after that period of time you

         20  would have to be dependent on flashlights.

         21                 And even photoluminescence has a

         22  limited life until it has been recharged with light.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, all

         24  right.  Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.
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          2  No more questions?  Thank you very much.

          3                 MR. PODMORE:  Thank you very much,

          4  thank you for the support.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Andrew

          6  Hoffman and Rick Bell, must be tired of sitting.

          7  You are the last ones.

          8                 MR. HOFFMAN:  My name is Andrew

          9  Hoffman.  I am the President of the Community

         10  Housing Improvement Program, (CHIP).  It is a

         11  Property Owners Trade Association.  I am also the

         12  owner operator of Rent Regulated Housing in New York

         13  City.

         14                 While Intro. 257 regarding the

         15  mandatory installation of battery powered exit

         16  lighting is good intention, due to the high cost

         17  factors and limited benefit, I believe the Council

         18  should reject this introduction.  Emergency lighting

         19  is expensive.  You cannot just go to Home Depot or

         20  some hardware store and buy battery backup fixtures,

         21  you must hire a license electrician to wire the

         22  devices into the buildings power supply, and this

         23  can cost upwards of $500 per fixture, even higher

         24  for smaller buildings.

         25                 High cost is certainly a major issue,
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          2  but I believe the larger issue is the benefit these

          3  fixtures will provide.  The fixtures we are

          4  discussing typically have an operating of 90

          5  minutes.  They will provide light for 90 minutes.

          6  In the last blackout, the lights went off at 3:00

          7  p.m.  If you remember, it was a nice day, and by

          8  sunset all the batteries all over the City were

          9  expended and the stairways were dark.

         10                 While it may make sense in an office

         11  building while tenants in the event of a power

         12  outage are required to leave because they really

         13  cannot stand there, in their buildings, offices, and

         14  work.  For a home, an apartment building, it is

         15  much, much different as we just discussed.

         16                 People come and go all the time, up

         17  and down, they are not being evacuated out of their

         18  apartment building. Typically, in a short duration

         19  blackout where the 90- minute light fixture may be

         20  applicable, people do not want to stay home.

         21  Remember the Mayor at the beginning of the blackout

         22  last time was telling people to stay home, use your

         23  flashlight, read a book, listen to the radio, stay

         24  home.

         25                 Commercial and residential buildings
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          2  are much different, you cannot work in a commercial

          3  building.  You are supposed to leave, and that is

          4  why there is the emergency lighting.

          5                 I believe that these arguments were

          6  made in 1986 when Local Law 89 from 1986 was passed,

          7  which exempted residential buildings, and that is

          8  why only commercial buildings are required to have

          9  the emergency lighting.

         10                 I suggest that the same facts are

         11  true as they were in 1986, and I ask the Committee

         12  to reject this measure.  Thank you for giving me the

         13  opportunity to present to you today.

         14                 MR. BELL:  Good afternoon.  It is

         15  quite a privilege to be here to speak, and to speak

         16  last.  I will not take advantage of that by going on

         17  and on, but I do appreciate your patience in staying

         18  and listening.  My name is Rick Bell.  I am

         19  Executive Director of the New York Chapter of the

         20  American Institute of Architects, and I am speaking

         21  here today on behalf of our 3,500 professional and

         22  affiliated members, and for Chapter President Mark

         23  Gingberg who was here earlier, but had to leave.

         24                 We believe that the City Council's

         25  Intro. 257 has some good ideas, but requires further
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          2  study before enactment, and that this should occur

          3  with the adoption of the new International Building

          4  Code.  The proposed legislation would require

          5  emergency lighting and exit signs in all new

          6  apartment buildings, and in all existing apartment

          7  buildings by January 1st, 2007.

          8                 When architectural firms design

          9  housing, we recommend to our clients that we put

         10  emergency lighting and exit signs in the buildings.

         11  But we also know that the value of the emergency

         12  lighting, from experience during the recent

         13  blackout, is mitigated, as we have heard from other

         14  speakers,  by the duration of the battery packs.

         15  And that there are problems when emergency lighting

         16  does not work.

         17                 The proposed changes will also raise

         18  the cost of housing, as others have noted and has

         19  have other co- changes on occasion.  This increased

         20  cost should be reflected in increased budgets for

         21  the New York City Housing Authority and the

         22  Department of Housing Preservation and Development.

         23  Previous Code changes made by the Council have not

         24  always been coupled with increased budgets for these

         25  agencies, thereby, reducing the production of
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          2  affordable housing.  We need to be very careful to

          3  study the cost and benefits of all Code changes.

          4  They are suggested often with the best of

          5  intentions, and are usually worth the additional

          6  cost, but other solutions may be better or have

          7  initial or lower maintenance cost, for example, the

          8  discussion of photoluminescence tape, may be a

          9  better way to achieve part of the goals of the

         10  proposed legislation.

         11                 With the Council's participation and

         12  the support of the City, we have been going through

         13  a process of adopting, we hope, the International

         14  Building Code with locally required amendments.  The

         15  IBC code, currently, does require exit signs and

         16  emergency lighting in residential buildings.  We

         17  would suggest that the issues in this legislation,

         18  particularly, the requirement of retrofitting

         19  existing buildings be part of the larger upgrading

         20  of our Building Code.  This would permit these ideas

         21  to be studied in the context of an updated code

         22  allowing for improved life safety in the most cost-

         23  effective matter.

         24                 Thank you for your time and

         25  consideration, and the opportunity to testify here
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          2  today.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          4  Member Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

          6  afternoon.  I wanted to ask you a question, Sir, I

          7  am sorry, I forgot your name.

          8                 MR. HOFFMAN:  Andrew Hoffman.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Andrew, you

         10  suggest that, you recommend that we reject this

         11  proposal; is that correct?

         12                 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And I guess

         14  because of the cost factor involved; is that

         15  correct?

         16                 MR. HOFFMAN:  The cost and the

         17  benefit, the ratio is just not there.  You know you

         18  do not get much benefit for the cost that this

         19  incurs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  I

         21  remember clearly during the blackout, I live in a

         22  residential building, pre- World building, six-

         23  floor elevator, and it was totally pitch black.  And

         24  even with the stairwell at the end where there is

         25  big windows, once it got dark, you just could not
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          2  see at all.

          3                 What do you suggest that we do in

          4  order to ensure, and especially with the environment

          5  that experts predicts that there are going to be

          6  more blackouts in the future, what do you suggest

          7  that we do in order to address the situation,

          8  besides just rejecting it?

          9                 MR. HOFFMAN:  Well some of the things

         10  we have talked about earlier as far as Intro. 126

         11  with luminescent stripping, may actually be

         12  applicable here.  Because what you are looking to do

         13  in the staircase is navigate the staircase.  You

         14  want to know where the wall is, you want to know

         15  where the door is.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And the

         17  chairs, I mean the handle.

         18                 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, I know myself, I

         19  navigated through the use of my palm, this light was

         20  enough for me.  And a lot of people had little

         21  flashlights on their key chains.  It is going to be

         22  impossible to cover all the parameters here.  But

         23  you came home, and it was certainly an hour and a

         24  half after the blackout started.  So there is not

         25  much that can be done as far as the current
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          2  technology is concerned, as far as battery backup

          3  lighting.  It is impossible to get a battery big

          4  enough in order to give you enough of a range where

          5  you will really provide some sort of service for

          6  somebody.

          7                 I know like NYCHA said earlier, the

          8  human resources are certainly key.  You know all my

          9  guys have battery, have flashlights, and we were

         10  walking people up stairways in my buildings.  And

         11  the neighbors all pitched in.  You know, you cannot

         12  account for everything that is going to happen.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I do know,

         14  at least now, at the bottom of each door it has that

         15  with apartment number and supposedly the Fire

         16  Department should be able to look at that, is that

         17  correct, when there is a fire.  Do you know what I

         18  am talking about?

         19                 MR. HOFFMAN:  Yes, that is not a

         20  Building Code requirement.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No?

         22                 MR. HOFFMAN:  No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So you do

         24  that voluntarily?

         25                 MR. HOFFMAN:  Some buildings maybe
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          2  doing that voluntarily.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  You

          4  know, quite frankly, I am not, I do think that the

          5  landlords need to be able to, building owners need

          6  to be able to do something in order to ensure that

          7  when there are blackouts that the residents of the

          8  building should be able to navigate.  And it may be,

          9  like we said, the illuminating stripes, and I am not

         10  saying if it is photo or whatever, but in some sort

         11  of way in order for people to navigate in and out of

         12  the building.

         13                 MR. HOFFMAN:  I think it is certainly

         14  something that we could all sit down and discuss.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, thank

         16  you, Madam Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  No more

         18  questions, I thank you very much.  I also thank my

         19  colleagues, Councilwoman Brewer and Councilman

         20  Jackson for hanging out with me.  Hey, Leroy, you

         21  are still here, and Councilman Leroy Comrie, it is

         22  always nice to have faithful Committee members.

         23                 We have a Memorandum in Opposition to

         24  Intro. 257, submitted by RSA, that will be included

         25  in the record.
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          2                 And Intro. No. 126- A and Intro. No.

          3  257 are laid over.

          4                 Thank you all, this hearing is

          5  adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing adjourned at 5:15 p.m.)

          7                 (The following was read into the

          8  record.)

          9

         10  Testimony of:

         11  Rent Stabilization Association

         12                 Memorandum in Opposition, Intro. 257

         13                 The Rent Stabilization Association of

         14  New York represents over 25,000 owners and managers

         15  of multiple dwellings in New York that collectively

         16  contain over one million members and we agree with

         17  the stated intent of Intro. 257.  However, in its

         18  current form owners simply could not afford.

         19  Because of the economic hardship, we must oppose

         20  Intro. 257 at this time.

         21                 Intro. 257 would require all

         22  residential apartment buildings to install emergency

         23  lighting and exit signs (all equipped with a battery

         24  backup) in halls and stairwells for use in the event

         25  of a power outage.  Rewiring existing lighting
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          2  systems and adding the required backup is a job only

          3  licensed electricians are qualified to perform.

          4  Prices for such work would range from $200.00 to

          5  $500.00 per floor per stairwell.

          6                 Given the severe economic situation

          7  many owners are facing with the dramatic rise in

          8  real property taxes, fuel and insurance this

          9  proposal is prohibitively expensive at this time.

         10  The RSA would be happy to sit down and discuss these

         11  issues with the Council.

         12

         13  Testimony of:

         14  Alexander Wood

         15  Director

         16  Disabilities Network of NYC

         17                 Good afternoon.  I am Alexander Wood,

         18  and I am the director of the Disabilities Network of

         19  NYC.

         20                 The Disabilities Network of New York

         21  City is a coalition of consumers, advocates and

         22  professional organizations representing and working

         23  of behalf of people of all ages with physical

         24  disabilities in the life of the City by

         25  strengthening appropriate citywide policies,
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          2  resources, services and legal protections; assuring

          3  reasonable accommodations; and building informed and

          4  accurate public perception about people with

          5  disabilities.

          6                 I want to thank the City Council

          7  Committee on Housing & Buildings for conducting this

          8  hearing.  Other members of the Disabilities Network

          9  and I over the past year have been paying close

         10  attention to accessibility issues in the codes

         11  regulating the built environment.  The

         12  administration has been responsive, and included

         13  people with disabilities and advocates for community

         14  concerns on some of the 13 technical committees,

         15  which will propose amendments to the International

         16  Building Code to make it fit the needs of all New

         17  Yorkers.

         18                 Like every other New Yorker, after

         19  September 11, I have been much more focused on

         20  emergency planning.  A story that has not come out

         21  in the news very much is that many people with

         22  disabilities working in the World Trade Center never

         23  made it out of the building.  Last Fall, I learned

         24  about Escape Rescue Systems and their external

         25  evacuation systems, and how rapidly they can be
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          2  deployed like a lifeboat system for a sinking ship,

          3  and so long as accessibility is factored into the

          4  design, I think this is an excellent concept that

          5  New York City should allow to be developed for local

          6  use and amend the relevant fire safety codes and

          7  building codes.

          8                 Primarily the Disabilities Network

          9  supports the innovations of egress that Escape

         10  Rescue Systems represents and appreciates the

         11  potential for this technology to save lives.

         12                 Thank you.

         13

         14  Testimony of:

         15  Jerrold Nadler

         16  Congressman, 8th District, New York

         17  Congress of the United States

         18                 Good afternoon.  As the Congressional

         19  representative for Lower Manhattan, I am here today

         20  to urge the City to take the lead in examining new

         21  technologies that can help ensure that we are better

         22  prepared for future emergencies.

         23                 The tragic loss of thousands of lives

         24  on 9/11 is something we cannot ever forget.  Every

         25  day we are reminded of the tragedy that occurred.
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          2  And, while we must move forward, we must also look

          3  back and evaluate how the systems we rely on in

          4  emergencies performed.  It is our responsibility to

          5  analyze the evacuation systems and methods employed

          6  on that day in order to ensure that we are as

          7  prepared as possible for future emergencies, a fire

          8  in a skyscraper as occurred in Chicago, or another

          9  widespread blackout or any other situation during

         10  which use of the primary means of evacuation from

         11  high- rise buildings is not sufficient.  Hopefully,

         12  none of these situations will come to pass. However,

         13  we must prepare for every eventuality and ensure

         14  that we examine every possible solution to increase

         15  the chances of saving as many lives as possible in

         16  an emergency situation.  And, we must ensure that

         17  new solutions work not only for the able- bodied,

         18  but also for people of all ages and physical

         19  abilities.

         20                 New York City is in the process of a

         21  long overdue revision of its Building Code.  It is

         22  incumbent on the City to not only bring the Building

         23  Code up to date, but to revise the Code so that it

         24  is flexible enough to meet future needs.  We have

         25  seen time and time again that, in some
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          2  circumstances, simply relying on stairwells and

          3  other traditional new solutions that are being

          4  developed and tested in other countries, and adopt a

          5  Building Code that can evolve with new technologies

          6  to ensure that the City of New York stays ahead of,

          7  rather than behind, the curve.

          8                 It is my understanding that the

          9  Technical Committee on Means of Egress of the

         10  National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), one of

         11  the primary standard setting organizations in the

         12  country, recently voted to amend the Life Safety

         13  Code promulgated by the NFPA to recognize external

         14  evacuation devices and systems as an added means of

         15  escape and egress.  We have the perfect opportunity

         16  to do the same of New York City as the process of

         17  revising our Building Code progresses.  It would be

         18  a travesty for the City of New York to adopt a new,

         19  updated Building  Code without providing the

         20  flexibility needed to ensure that new systems for

         21  evacuation could be thoroughly analyzed and, if

         22  deemed appropriate, approved.

         23                 Why should we limit evacuation

         24  systems to those located inside a building, when it

         25  has been proven time and time again that current

                                                            190

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  systems, stairwells, fire exits, et cetera,

          3  sometimes cannot be used to quickly and safely

          4  evacuate everyone during an emergency and bring fire

          5  and rescue workers into the building to help control

          6  the situation?  The City of New York should be

          7  leading the way in exploring new solutions to old

          8  problems.  I applaud the Buildings Committee for

          9  holding this hearing.

         10                 Thank you for your time and

         11  attention.

         12

         13  Testimony of:

         14  Joseph Zicherman, Ph.D., SFPE

         15  Principal

         16  Fire Cause Analysis, Richmond, California

         17                 Since the World Trade Center incident

         18  of September 11, 2001, many suggestions have been

         19  suggested in the fire safety community concerning

         20  evacuation techniques for high- rise buildings

         21  during an emergency.  Ideas offered have ranged from

         22  widening existing exit stairways to using

         23  specialized equipment to help occupants escape in

         24  non- traditional manners.  In general, such

         25  suggestions can be classified as either conventional
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          2  or traditional approaches, i.e. Methods used for

          3  high- rise applications before 9/11, or

          4  unconventional or non- traditional, i.e. Methods

          5  representing relatively new, or untried concepts, or

          6  concepts which until now have been prohibited in the

          7  United States or on which the codes have been

          8  silent.

          9                 While existing codes do not yet

         10  recognize anything but traditional means of egress,

         11  the mainstream media has nonetheless published

         12  articles about some of these unorthodox measures,

         13  many of which have been around years.  As fire

         14  safety professionals, I believe that our community

         15  should, as a minimum, be familiar with them, even if

         16  we do not condone use of specific systems.

         17                 Unconventional exit strategies:

         18                 Conventional approaches to high- rise

         19  fire safety planning currently integrated active and

         20  passive construction features, such as

         21  compartmentation, fire sprinklers, and pressurized

         22  stairwells, that have proven reliable over the

         23  years. Unconventional exiting approaches, on the

         24  other hand, may include such non- traditional safety

         25  measures as winch- like lowering systems, escape
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          2  chutes, and parachutes designed to dissipate the

          3  kinetic energy developed by descending evacuees to

          4  deposit them safely on the ground at a manageable

          5  speed.  Such devices pose significant questions

          6  about potential regulatory issues and human

          7  behavior.  Currently, unconventional exiting

          8  strategies are not typically part of the U.S. System

          9  design, emergency planning, or regulatory review,

         10  although NFPA 101, Life Safety Code, and NFPA 5000,

         11  Building Construction and Safety Code, do address

         12  evacuation slides to a limited extent since they are

         13  used by industrial facilities, such as oil- cracking

         14  towers, and in air traffic control towers on some

         15  military bases.  Despite our lack of familiarity and

         16  use of such systems in the United States, however,

         17  many used in other countries.

         18                 For example, more than 100,000 UL-

         19  listed evacuation systems, based on a Japanese

         20  external evacuation device, which can hold

         21  individuals weighing up to 225 pounds (102

         22  kilograms), are reportedly in use in that country.

         23                 Examples can be found in other

         24  countries as well as the US, and these include

         25  chute- and slide- based devices that typically use a
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          2  fabric tube or slide deployed at locations as high

          3  as 30 stories above ground with sufficient run- out

          4  room to allow evacuees to slow before making a safe

          5  exit.  An example of such a chute- based system has

          6  been installed at the Ramstein Air Force Base air-

          7  traffic control tower.

          8                 Regulatory and listing issues are

          9  important for any technologies used to provide

         10  assurances of life safety to building occupants, and

         11  development of regulations governing these systems

         12  will be challenging for a variety of reasons.

         13                 Such regulations will have to

         14  acknowledge that controlled- descent devices are

         15  last resorts, to be used only when conventional

         16  exits are no longer serviceable, and address the

         17  significantly different expectations for conditions

         18  and risks under which these systems will be used.

         19                 Precedent for the use of

         20  unconventional approaches already exists in Sections

         21  7.2 and 7.2.10 of NFPA 101.  Section 7.2.10,

         22  entitled "Slide Escapes," specifically recognizes

         23  slide escapes as a means of egress, when permitted

         24  in Chapters 12 through 42 of NFPA 101.

         25                 Section 7.2.10 also states that slide
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          2  escapes must be of an approved type and that the

          3  rated capacity of such slides must be taken into

          4  account in overall egress planning.  Chapter 40,

          5   "Industrial Occupancies," allows slides to be used

          6  for 100 percent of the emergency exiting capacity of

          7  high- hazard occupancies, but only when potential

          8  evacuees are regularly trained in their use. And

          9  Appendix A.11.2.2 states that escape chutes,

         10  controlled descent devices, and elevators "should

         11  not be substituted for the provisions of this Code."

         12                 Some unconventional controlled

         13  descent components and devices have already been

         14  listed by UL and are thus subject to ongoing

         15  inspection programs to maintain those listings.

         16  However, UL's documentation notes that the devices

         17  have been evaluated for mechanical operation only

         18  and are other intended for use as a means of egress,

         19  during fires.  The evaluations conducted to date

         20  address only specific properties, such as rate of

         21  descent speed, capacity, and durability or

         22  resistance to corrosion.

         23                 Enhancements to building performance

         24  in the coming years will certainly entail another

         25  look at non- traditional means of building
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          2  evacuation.

          3                 Broader use of elevators for

          4  evacuation, simultaneous evacuation of all floors in

          5  a high- rise, new ways of evacuating occupants with

          6  mobility impairments, and use of unconventional

          7  systems are all open for discussion.

          8                 First responders already use some of

          9  the systems descried here, and their use in high-

         10  hazard occupancies or tall structure with limited

         11  numbers of occupants, especially those who are

         12  physically fit, may be reasonable.

         13                 Developing necessary codes and

         14  standards to address this problem area will be

         15  challenging.  Positive steps have been taken in this

         16  direction by the NFPA in general by acting as a

         17  clearing house and focus for discussion for these

         18  systems, and in particular by the NFPA 101 Life

         19  Safety Committee, which has acknowledged these

         20  systems, albeit as last resorts in extreme

         21  emergencies, in recent ballot activities updating

         22  NFPA 101. Likewise, ASTM is apparently going to

         23  consider this area of technology thru its committee

         24  E- 06, which deals with building performance issues.

         25                 Issues to be addressed, based on my
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          2  observations, include the following:

          3                 Use issues associated with the

          4  question of "when" external evacuation systems may

          5  be needed, as when core systems are unavailable.

          6                 Issues of movement of the disabled

          7  when core systems may be unavailable or cannot be

          8  used for their means of movement.

          9                 First responder use of these systems.

         10                 Organized categorization and research

         11  into relevant human factors issues.

         12                 Impact of adoption of regulations and

         13  technology on existing life safety pre- planning and

         14  budgeting.

         15                 I believe that, given New York City's

         16  unfortunate experience in this area and the very

         17  attenuated focus on emergency egress issues that

         18  exists, the current legislative initiative is

         19  worthwhile.  Pursuing this initiative to explore and

         20  hopefully address finding an appropriate place for

         21  these technologies in the NYC Building Code and

         22  encouraging the development of responsible,

         23  underlying technologies for their applications and

         24  regulation, subject to the caveats I recommend

         25  above, as well as those of others, will, I believe,
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          2  benefit the City of New York in the long run.

          3                 For Fire Analysis;

          4                 Joseph B. Zicherman, Ph.D., SFPE.

          5                 (Hearing concluded 5:15 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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         17  set my hand this 26th day of April 2004.
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